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CITY OF NATCHITOCHES 
°Hey Senlement in rite Ltmisiano Purrhow 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

This section of the City of Natchitoches' annual fmancial report offers readers a narrative cnerview and 
analysis of the financial performance of the City for the fiscal year ended on May 31. 2023. Readers are 
encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information furnished 
in the City's financial statements, which immediately follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of the City of Natchitoches exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal 
vear by $108,990.436 (net position). 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year. the City of Natchitoches' go% ernmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $25,359,245 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $3,075.875 
or 18% of the total general fiind expenditures. 

• The City's bond and notes payable totaled S17,178.149 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. 
The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial 
statements, 2) financial statements of individual funds, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances. in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may 
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or detenoratmg. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the 
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, re% =lies and expenses are reported in this 
statement for sonic items that will only result in cash tlows in future fiscal periods (e.g , uncollected taxes 
and earned. but unused, compensated absences). 



Pac 
CITY OF NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fur Year Ended May 31. 2023 

Both of the govenunent-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Citv that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are 
intended to recover all or a signiticant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety. ;treets and 
sanitation. water, sewer, and utilities, economic development, health and welfare, recreation and culture, 
and interest on long-term debt. The business-type activities of the City include utilities administration, 
electric, water and sewer, and interest on long-term debt. The government-wide financial statements can 
be found on pages 13 and 14 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City. like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the City can he divided into two categories - governmental funds and 
proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds - Govenunental funds are used to accuunt for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide tinancial statements. L,overnmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such information may be usefill in evaluating a government's near-tenn financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, 
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with smular information presented 
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so. readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental 
funds balance sheet and the guvernmental statements of revenues. expenditures and changes in fund 
balances provides a reconciliation to facilitate this cmnparison hetween eovernmental funds and 
governmental activities. 

The City maintains 61 governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund 
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues. expenditures. and changes in fund 
balances for the general, capital projects sales tax, capital projects streets, utility improvements, and sales 
tax rededication funds, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other funds are 
comhined into a single, aggregated presentation Individual fund data for each of these non-major 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The basic 
governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 16 through 19. 

Propriety Funds - The City maintains only one type of propriety fund called an enterpnse fund which is 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. The City uses the enterprise fund to account for its electric, water, and sewer operations. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the go% ernment-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the electric, 
water and sewer funds. The hasic propriety fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 through 25 
of this report. 
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CITY OF NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA 

Management's DISCIISSICHI and Analysis 
For Year Ended May 31. 2023 

Notes to the Flnanclal Statements - The notes provide additional infisrmation thar ic essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in rhe (;ovenunent-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial sratetnenrs can be finind on pages 29 
thiough 63 

Government-NV Me Financial Analysis 

As noted eat lier. net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of government's fmancial positiou. In the case of the City 
of Natchitoches, assets exceeded liabilities by $108.990,436 as of May 31, 2023, which is an increase of 52.882,818 from May 
3 I. 2022 

The largest portion of the Cay's net position reflects its investments in capital assers (e.g. land, bidding. equipment. 

improvements, construction in progiess and infrashucture). less any debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The 
City uses these capital assets to piovide services to citizens; consequently. these assets are uot available fur name speuduig 
Although the Cily's investment in its capital assets is leported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to 

repay this debt naist be pinvided from othei somces, since the capital assets. themselves, cannot be used to liquidate these 

 

City of Natchitoches' Net Position 

As of Mils 31. 2023 As of May 31, 2022 

 

Governmental 

Activities 

Business-Type 

Activities Total 

Govenimentdl 

Activities 

Business-Type 

Activittes Total 

Cunent and other assets $ 34.597,068 $ 14.821.368 $ 49,418.436 S 31.518.012 S 15,6211.012 S 47.138,024 
C'apital Assets 58.096,722 55.189.028 116,285.750 57.359.098 58.03'.7'1 115.391,819 

Total Assets $ 92.693.790 $ 73.010,396 $ 165.704.186 S 88,877.110 73.652.733 $ 162.529.843 

Defeired outflows 
of Resources $ 10,870,071 $ 2.897,989 $ 13,768,060 $ 4,-158,039 S 1,056.762 $ 5.514,801 

Long Tenn Lialnlities $ 43.982,203 $ 12.323,0(18 $ 56,305.211 S 30,897.926 S 9.818.556 $ 40.716,482 
Other Liabilities 9.267,823 1,713,394 10,981.217 10,656.999 2.388.333 13.045,332 

Total Liabilities $ 53.250.026 $ 14,036,402 $ 67.286.428 S 41,554.925 S 12.206.889 ti 53.761.814 

Defeired inflows 
of Resources $ 2.630,933 $ 564,449 $ 3,195.382 S 6,713.248 $ 1.36-1.913 $ 8.078,161 

Net Position 

Net hivestment 
in Capital Assets $ 43.823.573 $ 55.284,028 $ 99.107.601 S 44,636.628 S 54.923.555 $ 99.560.183 

Restricted 

 

6.137.349 6.137.349 

 

6.080.951 6.080.981 
resh ic led 3.859.329 (113,8431 3.745 486 430.348 133.157 563.505 

Total Nel Position $ 47.68',901 $ 61.3(17.534 s los,990. 4 ;6 s 45.066 9-76 S 61 137 691 S 106 2(14,660 
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CITY OF NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fca Year Ended May 31. 2023 

The following tahle provides a summary of die City's operaimens fur year ended May 31. 2023 and May 31. 2022. 

City of Natchitoches.  Changes in Net Position 

 

.4s of Mav 31. 2023 

 

As of May 31. 2022 

  

Governneental 

Activities 

Business-Type 

Activities Teem) 

Govenimental 

Activities 

Business-Type 

Activnies Total 

Progiam ServiLes. 
Fees. Fines and 

      

Charges for Sermes S 4.152.900 $ 39.791.825 S 43,946.725 S 3.683.679 S 3 6.272.751 S 31O56.430 
0peratmg Grants and 

Contrilmitions 3.73-1.796 

 

3.73-1.796 1.616.655 

 

1,616.655 
Capital Giants mud 

Crenmtnitions 3.318.1(89 

 

3.318.169 2.582.692 

 

2,582.692 
Geneial Revenites. 

      

Taxes-

       

Ad valorem 2.5111384 

 

2.510 384 2 315.706 

 

2.315 706 
Sales & Use 13.650.808 

 

13.650 808 13 092.111 

 

13.092.111 
FiailChise Fees 528.308 

 

528.30g 383.578 

 

383.578 
Video Bingo 624.127 

 

524.127 588.118 

 

588.118 
Licenses & Permits 1.199.635 

 

1.199.635 I.114.408 

 

1.114.408 
Intel est int.oine 67.627 19.918 87.545 58.784 19.828 78.612 
Gain t Loss l oll Sale of Assets (16.108) 25 (16.083) 103.784 33.494 137.278 
Game (Loss) len Investments 

   

(254,790) i 6.720i (261.5101 
Rental income 269.9-14 133 376 403.320 39/%740 106.016 5,14 756 
histIlanLe Rei.overies 348.782 4.321 353.103 268.068 33.003 301.071 
Nonemployer Pension Revenue 522.106 92.587 614 69; 5-0.491 9-1.049 637  540 
Miscellaneous 901.434 

 

901.434 139.68-1 

 

139.684 

Contnbuteel Capital 

 

1.404.8211 l.404 820 

 

1.1182.716 1.082 716 

Total Revenues S 31.712.912 $ 41.-148.872 S 73.161.784 S 26.63-1.708 S 36.635.137 $ 63.26..1.846 

Expenses: 

      

General Government S 9.253 603 

 

9.253 60; S 4 872.581 S S 4.872 581 
Public Salety 11.562.310 

 

11.562 310 10 304.621 

 

10.304.621 
Sti eels & Sanitation 3.354.517 

 

3.35-1.577 3.617,540 - 3.617.540 
Water. Sewer & 6.246 911 35.407 056 41.653.967 836.673 30.044.620 30.681 293 
Economic Development 2.1;0 957 

 

2.130 957 3 291.416 - 3.291 416 
Health & Welfare 

   

285.118 

 

285.118 
Ret.reation & Culture 1.685.69) 

 

1.685.693 1.183,398 

 

1.183.398 
bitelem on Long-Tenn Debi 

  

637.909 381.305 

 

38.1.30 6 

Total Expenses 

ifillease Muer positron 
before traiisfers 

S 34.871 910 S 35.-107 056 S 710.278.966 S 24.772.652 S 30.044.620 S 54.617 272 

S (3.158.998) S 6.041.816 S 2.882 818 S 1 862.056 S 6.590 517 S 8.452.573 

Traiisfeis 5.871 975 (5.871 975'e 

 

6.051.750 (6.1151.750) 

 

Increase m net position S 2.712 977 S 169.841 S 2.882 818 S 7 91;.806 S 538.767 S 8.452 573 

Net Position-June 1 -14.969.925 61.137 693 106.107.616 37.153.170 60.598.926 97,752.096 

Net Position-May 31 S 47.6h2 902 S 61.307 534 4 108.990.436 S 45.066.976 S 61.137  693 S 106.204 66,4 
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CITY OF NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fur Year Ended May 31. 2023 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

Governniental Funds - The focus of the City of Natchitoches' governmental funds is to provide 
information on short-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is 
useful in assessing the City's tinancing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance niay serve as 
a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal vear. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights - During the year, the City made three revisions to the original 
appropriations approved hy the City Council. 

Capital Assets 

The City of Natchitoches' investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as 
of May 31. 2023 amounts to $116,285.750 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings, equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following. 

• Improvements made to the water, sewer, and electric systems. 
• Improvements made to the City airport. 
• Improvements to Citv Parks. 
• Improvements to MLK Events Center. 

Capital Assets at Year-end 
As of May 31, 2023 

Capital Assets, not depreciated: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

   

Land $ 11.415.033 $ 937.995 $ 12.353,028 
Construction in Progress 1,471,788 0 1,471,788 

Capital Assets, depreciated: 

   

Buildings 20,517,341 1,961,897 22,479,238 
Other Infrastructure 37,990.011 0 37,990,011 
Other Assets 827.117 0 827,117 
Furniture & Fixtures 15,104 310,366 325,477(1 
Machinery & Equipment 5.421.176 11.405.769 16,826,945 
Vehicles 5,518,150 2,280,164 7,798,314 
Streets 92.561.314 0 92,561,314 
Sidewalks 5.547,865 0 5,547,865 
Electric System 0 24,985.181 24,985,181 
Water System 0 45.478.732 45,478,732 
Sewer System 0 27.721.697 27,721.697 

Total Capital Assets $181,284.899 S115,081,801 S296.366,700 
Accumulated Deprecation 123.188,177 56.892.773 180,11£;t1,9511 

Net Capital Assets $   58,096,722  S  5M 9,028  $116,285,750 

Additional intbrmation on the City of Natchitoches' capital assets can be found on pages 40-42 of this 
report. 
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CITY OF NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For Year Ended May 31, 2023 

Debt Administration 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Natchitoches had total long term debt of $55,146,226. 
Long-term debt of the City includes net pension liability based on actuarially determined amounts in 
accordance with GASB No. 68. 

Outstanding Debt at Year End 
As of May 31, 2023 

 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

General Obligation Debt $ 812,148 $ 0 $ 812,148 
Other Post Employment 

Obligation 7,337,535 2,191,731 9,529,266 
Net Pension Liability 20,101,933 5,399,717 25,501,650 
Accrued Employee Vacations 2,269,586 667,576 2,937,162 
Revenue Bonds Payable 13,461,001 2,905,000 16,366,001 

Total $43,982,203  $11,164,024  $55,146,227 

The City's current Standard and Poor's bond rating is AAA. 

Additional information on the City of Natchitoches' long-term debt can be found on pages 42-44 of this 
report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

In the fiscal year 2023-2024 budget, general fund revenues are budgeted at a 20% increase from the 2022-
2023 budget year. Taxes make up approximately 50% of the general fund budgeted revenues, and transfers 
make up about 50%. The 2023-2024 utility fund operations are budgeted to break even. 

Request for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the City's finances. If you have questions about this report or need any additional information, 
contact the Finance Department, at P. O. Box 37, Natchitoches, Louisiana, 71458, call (318) 357-3825, or 
e-mail CBStnith@natchitochesla.gov. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Mayor and the City Council of 
Natchitoches, Louisiana 

Adverse, Qualified, and Unmodified Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, the fiduciary fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Natchitoches, Louisiana (City) as of and for the year ended May 31, 2023, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table 
of contents. 

Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse and Unmodified 
Opinions section of our report, the financial statements referred to above do not present fairly the financial 
position of the aggregate discretely presented component units of the City of Natchitoches, Louisiana, the 
reporting entity, as of May 31, 2023, or the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Unmodified Opinion on Governmental Activities, Business-Type Activities, Each Major Fund, the 
Fiduciary Fund, and the Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
the fiduciary fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Natchitoches, Louisiana as 
of May 31, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Basis for Adverse and Unmodified Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of 
Natchitoches, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Members of AICPA Members of AICPA 
Governmental Audit Quality City Members of Society of Louisiana CPA's 
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Matters Giving Rise to Adverse Opinion on the Aggregate Discretely Presented Component I "nits 

The financial statements do not include financial data for the City's legally separate component units 
Accounting pnnciples generally accepted in the United States of America require financial data for those 
component units to be reported with the tinancial data of the City's primary government unless the City 
also issues financial statements for the financial reporting entity that include the financial data tbr its 
component units. The City has not issued such reporting entity financial statements. The effects of not 
including the City's legally separate component units on the aggregate discretely presented component units 
have not been deterniined. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Finunciul Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation. and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise suhstantial doubt about the City of Natchitoches. Louisiana's 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months heyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise suhstantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the .4udit of the Finunciul Statements 

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not ahsolute assurance and therefore is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than tor one resulting from error, as traud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate. they would influence the judgment made by a reasonahle user based on the fmancial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we. 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material nusstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis. evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. hut not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Natchitoches, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, lio such 
opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by rnanagement, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
fuiancial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the City of Natchitoches. Louisiana's ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonahle penod of time. 
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit. significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementag Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis„Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Employer 
Contributions, Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and the budgetary 
comparison information, as listed in the table of contents. be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such infonnation, although not a part of the basic tinancial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic. or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic tinancial statements, and other know ledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the mforniation because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the tinancial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Natchitoches, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The accompanying. Schedule of 
Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer, Judicial System 
Funding Schedules, combinine and individual nonmajor fund tinancial statements and schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards. as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regukaions Part N0, Unif0rm 
Administrative Regwrements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements Pr Federal Awards, are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the hasic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Repordng Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated November 27, 21123 
on our consideration of the City of Natchitoches's internal control over tinancial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws. regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of this report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auduing 
Standards in considering the City of Natchitoches's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirernents of the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, we have issued a report, dated 
November 27, 2023, on the results of our statewide agreed-upon procedures perforrned in accordance with 
attestation standards established by the Arnerican Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the 
standards applicable to attestation engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards. The purpose 
of that report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those control and cornpliance areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's state wide agreed-upon procedures, and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or cornpliance. 

aortae) # 407,1-t ejt 
• 

Thornas, Cunningharn, Broadway & Todtenbier CPA's 
Natchitoches, Louisiana 

November 27, 2023 
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City of Natchitoches, Lnuisiana 
Governmeut-Wide Statement of Net Position 

May 31, 2023 

 

Ciovenuuental 

Activities 

Busitiess Type 

Activities Total 

Assets 

   

Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 31,488.510 $ 1.995.550 $ 33.484.060 
Receivables Net 2,949,406 4.942,492 7.891,898 
Other Receivables - 80,088 80,088 
Inventories at Cost - 1,639,79(1 1,639,790 
Prepaad Expenses 159.152 26,099 185.251 
Restricted Assets-

 

Cash & Cash Equivalents - 6.137,349 6. l 37,349 
Capatal Assets, net 58,096,722 55.1£<P,02?+ 116.285,75(1 

Total Assets 8 92f,93.790 $ 73.010,396 $ 165,704,186 

Deferted Outflows of Resources: 

   

Pensions $ 7,095,299 $ 1,770,460 $ 8.865,759 
OPEB 3.774.772 1.127,529 4.902,3111 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resoinces $ 10.870.071 $ 2,897,989 $ 13,768,060 

Liabilities 

   

Cash Overdrafts $ 3,431.222 $ - $ 3,431,222 
Accutuits Payable 1,351.296 1.481,460 2.832,756 
Accnied Payroll 677.289 231,934 909.223 
Accnied Expenses 779.041 - 779.041 
Defei red Revenue 3,028,975 

 

1.028,975 
Payable from Restricted Assets-

 

Custoiner Deposits 

 

1,158,984 1,158,984 
Long Team Debt-

    

Due within Cbie Year 1.450.5211 355,0a i0 1.S05,5'_+(► 
Due in More than one year 12,822.629 2.550,000 15.371.629 

Net OPEB Oblagation 7,337,535 2.191,731 9.529,266 
Net Pension Liability 20,101,933 5.399.717 25.501.65(1 
Accnied Employee Vacations 2.269.586 667,576 2,937,162 

Total Liabalites $ 53,250,026 $ 14.036,402 $ 67.286,428 

Defei red Inflows of Resources: 

   

Penstons $ 1.099.997 $ 107,156 $ 1.2(17,153 
OPEB 1.530.,.+36 457,293 1.988.229 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 2.630.933 $ 564,449 $ 3.195,382 

Net Position: 

   

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 43,823.573 $ 55.284,018 $ 99.107,6111 
Restricted for Debt Service 

 

6.137,349 6.137,349 
Unrestricted 3.859.329 (113,843) 3.745.486 

Total Net Position $ 47,682.902 $ 61.3(17,534 $ 108,990,436 

See independent auditots' report and related note disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 
May 31. 2023 

Major Funds 

  

Capital 

Projects 

Capital 

Projects Utility Capital American 

 

Toral 

  

hnprovemeuts Improvements Prujects Sales Rescue Plau Nouniajor Govermneutal 

 

Gruel al Fund Streets Fluid Fmk! Tax Fund Act Funds Funds 

.V•sets 

       

Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 3,442,706 S $ 4,705.292 S 3,512,659 S 3.139.778 $ 16.688.075 $ 31A88.510 

Reveuue Receivables 1.021.649 

  

407,325 

 

1.520.432 2,949.406 
Due from Other Funds 

     

36.489 36.489 

Prepaid Expenses 6,000 

 

4 '97 

  

148.855 159 152 

Total Assets $ 4.470, 

 

4 709, s S 919,9S4 5. 1.139,77s $ 18 191.S5 I 14,61; 55,7 

Liabilities 

       

Cash Oveidi aft $ 1,121,309 

 

$ 826,872 S $ 1.483,041 $ 3,431,222 

Accounts Payable 280,173 122,133 103 ,900 69,3(10 109,860 665.990 1,351.296 
Accmed Expense 454,22(1 

  

133,576 

 

191.245 779.041 

Deferred Revenue 

    

3.028.075 

 

3,028.975 

Due to Other Funds 16.559 

    

19.930 36.d£<9 
Accrued Pavroll 637.528 

   

1.003 38 758 677.289 

Total Liabilities $ 1,388,480 S 1,2,43,442 S 103,900 S 1.029,748 S $ 2.398.96,4 $ 9,3(I4.312 

Fund Balances 

       

Nouspendable 6.000 

 

14,143 5 

 

$ 136.580 $ 156.723 
Restricted 

     

7.520.851 7,520.851 

Committed 

  

4.591,546 2.890,236 

 

9,589.S56 17,071.638 
Unassigned 3.075,875 (1,243,442) 

   

(1.252.400) 580.033 

Total Fund Balaiic e $ 3.081,875 S (1,2-13,4,12) S .1,605,689 $ 2.890,236 S $ 15.904,887 $ 25 .329 ,245 

Total Liabilities 

Fiuid Balances $ 4,470, -Iss 

 

ti 4,7(o.sso S ;.')19.9Sl S 3.139.77s $ IS 393.S5I $ 34.633.557 

See independent auditois' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches, Louisiana 
Reconciliatiou of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

to rhe Statement of Net Position 
May 31. 2023 

Total Fund Balance of Governmental Fuuds $ 15.319.'45 

Amounts reported foo Governmental Activities in the Statement of 
Net Position are differenr because: 

The followang used in Governmental Activities ale not fonancial 
resouoces. and, therefore. ale not oeported in the Governmental 
Funds Balance Sheer-

 

Capital Assets. Net 58.4)96.722 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 1(t,870,071 

The followmp are not due and payahle in the current period and, 
therefooe. are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance 
Sheet-

 

Long-tenn Deht (14,273,144)) 
Net OPEB Obligation (7,337,5351 
Net Pension Liability (20,101.933) 
Accnied Compensated Absences 42,269.586) 
Defeo red Inflows of Resources (2.630.933) 

Total Net Positoon of Governmental Activities ` =17,682.902 

See independent auditots' report and related note disclosures 
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City of Natchitoche, Louisiana 

Stateuieni of Rerienues Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balance 
Go\ ernmenial Funds 

For the Year Ended May 31. 20:13 

Majui Funcl,  

 

6cil,r II Fund 

Capital 

PRIMO!. 

Itnµravement.. 

Streels Fund 

Capital 

Proyas Utility 

Improvements 

Fund 

Capital 

Project Sales 

Tax Fund 

American 

Rescue Plan 

Act 

Nunnuimr 

Funds 

Total 

Governmental 

Fuud, 

REVENIJES 

        

Taxes S 6 535.197 S 

 

S S 2 553.126 S S 7.482 873 S 17.071 196 
Licenses & Permits 1.199,635 

      

1,144.635 

Intergovernmental 1.151,945 

    

3, 130.564 2.740.401 7.052.y65 

Charges for Sei vices 101,646 

  

650.tib9 

  

2,905.M 3,656.667 

Fines & Forfeits 11.7(15 

     

40,642 52.347 
Miscellaneous 267.1'7 

  

67.672 27.288 

 

949 468 1.311 825 

Total Revenues S v.297.40 $ 

 

S 715.561 $ 2.580.414 S3.130,5u4 $ 14,eil4.656 S 30.346.635 

EXPENDITIJRES, 

        

Current-

         

Cieneial Ga(erunient S 4 916.185 S 

 

5 S S 933.894 S 1.6n1 55.4 S 7.4s3 632 

Pulni. Sifety 9 531.513 

    

57 5.553 790  452 (0.656 516 
Streets & Sanitation 1 SU3,617 

 

5(17 

  

1.4h4.430 2.2713132 5.250.786 
Wale'. Sewer & UtilltIci - 

  

17 1.927 1.243.786 

 

2.797.774 4.263.457 

Econoinic Development 221,049 

     

3,383J 313 3,6pc.08.7 

Recreation & Culture 754.127 

    

186.692 376.652 1,344.70I 

Hcalth & Welfare - 

     

- - 

Debt Service 26.873 

  

100.00o 

  

12.442 356 13.069 231 

Total Expenditures S 16.456.464 S 507 $ 2- 1.927 $ 1.213,786 S3.130.5o4 S 24.174.159 S 45,55-1.442 

Excess t Deficiency) of Revenues 
over ExpendituiN $ i 7.659.050) $ (507) $ 446.634 S 1.256.625 S $ (9.554.%03i St 15.5 

OTHER FINANCING 

        

SOURCES i USES i: 

        

Operating Transfers In S h 2U2,448 S on0.50U S S S S 5.93(7.053 S 14.734.431 
Operating Trawfeis Out (l 317.30U1 

   

(I.3.50.00(11 

 

(6.195 156) (6.662 -156) 

Sale of Assets 11.032 

   

- 

 

42.7R 54.720 

Los: ull Imestnients 

    

164.922) 

  

(64.422i 
Debt Proceeds 

   

.isoiijo 

  

13.642.1no 14.032.90t 

Tutal Other Financing s f:s.6'4— .564 ) i 1,sliti.5U1) i .:', !`;9.f“:0 1,  (1.414.922i S S 1.1.421.115 S 1 4,S93.773 

Execs., (DcfictencyF of Revenues 

6nd Other Sources over 
Expendinires and Other Uses S t 701,4701 $ 509,943 $ ti36.134 S 1128.294) S S 3.566.612 S 4.382.466 

Fund Balances-

 

Beginning of Year* 3 873.354 (1 843.4351 3 769.555 3.(11&53i) 

 

12.128 275 20.94e) 279 

Fund Balances-

 

End of Year S 3 081.s75 S (1 243.4-42 S 4 6°5.680 S 2.SoU..236 S 15.994 ES7 $ 25.329 '45 

'Resisted - See note I' 

See independent auditors' report aud [elated note disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches, Louisiana 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Reveuues. Expenditures. and 

Changes in Flint! Balance of the Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

Islay 31. 2023 

Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds S 4.382.966 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement 
of Activities are different because 

Governmental Funds leport Capital Outlays as expenditures 
However. in the Statement of Activities, the cost of these 
assets is allocated over their estimated iNeful lives as a 
depreciation expense The cost of capital assets recoided 
the cunent period is 

Depreciation Expense ou capital assets is reported iu the 
Government-wide tinanical statements, hut does not require 
the use of cunent financial resources anti is not reported in 
the Fund Financial Statements. Cuirent yew depreciation is 

Some ievenues reported in the Statement of Activities do not 
provide current financial iesources and these are not repotted 
as revenues in governmental funds Some expenses reported 
in the Staternent of Actvities do not require the use of current 
financial resouices and. therefore. are uot reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. The timing differences 
are simuninized below: 

Long Term Deht Payments 

Debt Proceeds 
Non-Einployer Pension Revenue 
Net OPEB Obligation 
Pension Expense 
Accrued Compensated Ahsences 

4.203.670 

(3.466.046) 

12,481.322 

(14.032.000) 
522.106 

(616.557) 
(593.292) 
(169.192) 

The net effect of sales transactions involving capital assets is 
to decrease net position: 

Deciease of Capital Assets 
Decrease of Accumulated Depreciation 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 2.711()77 

See independent auchrois' reporr and related nore disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches, Louisiana 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 
Foi the Year Ended May 31. 2023 

Assets-

 

Current Assets-

 

Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 1 At95.550 
Receivables 2.623.648 

Less, Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (300,000) 
Unbilled Receivables 2.618,84,4 

Inventories at Cost 1.639.790 
Prepaid Expenses 26.099 

Total Current Assets $ S.603.931 

Restricted Assets-

 

Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 6.137 349 

NollCUIrent Assets-

 

C'apital Assets. net $ 58.189,02S 

Other Assets-

 

Othei Receivables 80,088 

Total Assets $ 73.010.396 

Deferred Outflows ot Resources-

  

Pensions $ 1.770.460 
OPEB 1.127,529 

Total Deferred ()willows of Resources $ 2.897.98.9 

Accounts Pavable $ 1.481.460 
Accrued Payroll 231.934 
Acemed Employee Vacations 66.758 

Toral Current Liabilities $ 1,780.152 

Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets-

  

Current Portion of Revenue Bonds g 355.000 
Customer's Deposits 1.158.984 

Total Payable from Restricted Assets $ 1.513,984 

Continued on next page 

See independent auditois' report and related note disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches, Louisiana 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 
Foi the Year Ended May 31. 2023 

Noncturenr Liabil 
Revenue Bouds Payable $ 2.55tinoo 
Ner OPEB Obligation 2,191.731 
Net Pension Liability 5.399.717 
Accmed Employee Vacialolls 60o.S IS 

Total Noncurrent Liahilities $ 10,742.266 

Total Liabilities $ 14.036.4(12 

Deferred Inflows of Resources-

  

Pensions 107.156 
OPEB 457.-'93 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 564.449 

Net Position:-

  

Net lnvesmient in Capital Assets $ 55,2X4.028 
Restricted for Deht Service 6.137.34.9 
Unrestricted (113.843) 

Total Net Position $ 61.307 534 

See independent auditois' report and related note disclosures 



Page 22 

C it y of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 
Foi the Year Ended May 31. 2023 

Opel at ing Reveimes 
Charges for Services-

 

Electnc S 31.628,344 
Water 5.272,740 
Sewei 2.853,807 

Miscdlaneous-

 

Bad Debt Recnvery 1,816 

Other 3 7,1 18 

Total Operating Revenues S 30.793,8'5 

Operating Expenses: 
Utilitv Administration-

 

Personnel Services 5 991,489 
Supplies and Maintenance 545,735  

Total Administration 5 1.537.224 

Electric-

  

Personnel Services S 1.701,481 
Power Puicliased ' 1 .518.595 
Depreciation 531,676 
Supplies and Maintenance 1.134,071 

Total Electric $ 15.895,8'3 

Water-

  

Personnel Services S 792.469 
Treatment Expelises 1,887,121 
Dela ec iation 1.079,107 
Supplies and Maintenance 1.153.365 

Total Water S .O12.062 

Sewer-

  

Personnel Services x 956,997 
Treatment Expenses 170,5l9 
Depreciation 610,852 
Supplies and Maiutneance 745.957 

Total Sewer $ 2.484,325 

Continued oti next page. 

See independent auditots' report and related nore disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Proprietary Fluid 
Foi the Year Ended May 31. 2023 

hiformatim Technology Department-

 

Personnel Services 
Ctanputei Soil-wale& Maintenance 
Supplies Maintenance 

$ 205.546 
137,602 
113,471 

Total Information Technology Dept $ 456,6 I 

Total Operating Expenses S 35.286.053 

Inenine from Opei awns S 4.507.772 

Nou-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

 

Interesr Income S 19.913 
Insurance Recoveries 4.321 
Gain (Lussl on Sale of Assets 15 

Non-Employer Pension Revenue 91.587 
Rental Income 133.376 
Inkiest Expense (121,0O) 

Traal Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) S 129.224 

Income Before Contributions and Transfers S 4.636.4)96 

Contrdnitions and Transfers-

  

Contributed from Other Funds S 1.404.820 
Transfers Out (7.249,000i 
Taimsfers In 1.377,025 

Total Contributions and Transfers S (4.467.155) 

Change in Ner Positton S 169,341 

Net Position Beglimiug of Year 61.137.693 

Net Position End of Yeai S 61.307,534 

See independent auditois' report and related nore disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches. 1,0111513113 
Statement ill Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fun,1 
For the Year Ended Mav 31, 2023 

 

Business-Type 

Activities 

Enterprise Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 

Cash Received Irian Customers S 39,688,179 

Cash Payments to Employees .-165,956 ) 

Cash Payments to Suppliers foi Goods and Services 129,308,656) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5,9B.567 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

 

Rental Income 5 133,376 

Transfers to Other Funds t 7.249,000) 

Transfeis from Other Funds 1.377,025 

Net Cash Provided by Capital & Related Fininicing Activities S (5.738.599) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Gain on Sale of Assets 

Insurance Reci wenes 

Proceeds from Capital Contributions 

Acquisition Constmcnon of Capital Assets 

Piincipal Paid on Capttal Debt 

Interest Paid nu Capital Debt 

Net Cash Provided by Capital & Related Financing Activities 

si 

4,321 
1.404,820 

(2.377,942) 
t 2(4,167) 
(1'1.0031 

(1.2()3 916)   

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Interest Inconie Y 19,918 

Debt Pioceeðs 
Loss on Investments 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities S 19,918 

Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents S (1,099,0(i0) 

Cash & Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Yew 9.231,959 

Cash & Cash Equivalents - End of Year 4z 8.132,899 

Continued on next page. 

See independent atiditots' reporr and related nore disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Statement i it Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fuu.l 
For the Year Ended May 31, 2023 

Business-Type 

Ac tivities 
Eliterpose Fund 

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Opeiating Incinne S 4,507.772 

ADJUST1IENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED (USED) BY C)PERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Depiec i at i $ 2.221.635 
Chances in Assets & Liabilities: 

(Increase) Declease in Accounts Receivable (63.7(t8) 
(hrmeN.e► Decrease in Inventory (196,293) 
(Increase) Decrease in Repaid Expense!. 14.154 
(hrcreNne) Decrease in C)ther Receivables (54,5(i8) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (710.0S I) 
Inciease (Decrease.) in Accrued Payroll 35.143 
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 25.439 
ham ease (Decrease) in Net OPEB 184,166 
Increase (Deciease) 111 Net Pension Liabihty (62.722) 
Mei ease (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 12.630 

Total Adjustments $ 1.405.795  

Net Cash Provided (used) by Operating Activities S 5 913.567 

RECONCILLetTION t)F TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
Current Assets-

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Restricted Assets-

 

Cash and Cash Etpuvalents 

Total Cash and Cash Etpuvalents 

S I.995,550 

(+.13-  349 

8.132,8T)   

See independent auditot s' reporr and related nore disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches, Louisiana 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

Custodial Fund 
Cash Bond Fund 

For the Yew Euded May 31. 203 

Assets 

 

Cash S 129,887 
Accounts Receivahle -14.1482 

Total Assets S 174,769 

 

S 174.769 Due to Others 

See independent auditois' reporr and related nore disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Fiduciary Fuud - Custodial Fund 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Foi rhe Year Ended May 31. 2023 

Police Bond 

Fund 

Unsettled Balances - Beginning of Year 103.417 

ADDITIONS: 
Fines tkr Forfietures 315.593 

DEDUCTIC)NS: 
Deposits Settled to Marshal 1244.241) 

Unsettled Balances - End of Year 174.769 
  

See independent auditois' report and related nore disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches, Louisiana 
Nutes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2023 

Introduction 

The City of Natchitoches (the City) was founded in 1714 and incorporated in 1822. The City currentiv 
operates under a Home Rule Charter adopted on January 27, 1975. The City operates under a Mayor-
Council form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: police and 
fire protection, streets and drainage, parks and recreation, certain social services, and general administration 
services. The City owns and operates one enterprise activity, a utility system which distributes electricity 
and provides water and sewer services. 

1 Summary of Signiticant Accountine, Policies 

The financial statements of the City of Natchitoches have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Ciovernmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting pnnciples. The more significant of the City's 
accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the prirnary government, (b) organizations for which 
the primary government is financially accountable. and (c) other organizations for which the 
primary go‘ernment is not accountable, but for which the nature and signficance of their 
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's 
financial statements to be nusleading or incomplete. Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity'.  establishes cnteria for determining 
which entities should be considered a component unit and, as such, part of the reporting entity for 
financial reporting purposes. The basic criteria is described below. 

1. Appointing a voting majonty of an organization's governing body and 

a. The ahility of the City of Natchitoches to impose its will on that organization and:or 

b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose 
specific tinancial burdens on the City of Natchitoches. 

Organizations for which the City of Natchitoches does not appoint a voting majority hut 
are fiscally dependent on the City. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity's financial statements would he misleading if 
data of the organization is not included hecause of the nature or signiticance of the 
relationship. 

Based on the previous criteria, the City of Natchitoches has determined that the following 
component units are part of the reporting entity: 

Component Unit Criteria Used 

Natchitoches City Court / and 3 
Natchitoches City Marshal 2 and 3 
Waterworks District No. 1 1 and 3 
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A. Reporting Entit‘ (continued) 

The City of Natchitoches has chosen to issue financial statements of the primary government (City) 
which exclude the above listed component units. Individual financial statements for the Awn e 
agencies may be obtained by writing P. (a. Box 37, Natchitoches, Louisiana 71458-0037. 

Various other entities operate within the City of Natchitoches, and many of these include 
"Natchitoches" within their name. These entities are not considered as reportable component units 
within the City's finaneial statements since the City does not exercise control over them. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

Go% erninent-Wide Financial Statements 

The govemment-wide financial staternents the Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government. They include 
all fnnds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. For the most part, the effect of interfund 
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or sement are offset hy program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific fimction or segment. Prop-am revenues include (1) charges to customers 
or applicants who purchase. use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by 
a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental fimds. Major intin idual governmental 
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The tinancial statements of the City of Natchitoches are organized into funds, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets. liabilities, fund equity. revenues 
and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and 
accounted for in the individual ftmds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the 
means by which spending activities are controlled. Funds are classitied into three categories• 
governmental, proprietary. and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the 
governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating 
fund of the City or meets thr following criteria: 

a. Total assets. liabilities, revenues. or expenditures expenses of that individual governmental or 
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category 
or type, and 
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B. Basis of Pre.sentation ( continued) 

b. Total assets, re% enues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund 
or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the eorresponding total for all €overnmental and 
enterprise funds combined. 

The fiinds of the City are described below: 

Go% ernmental Funds-

 

General Fund 

The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financtal 
resources except for those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Re‘enue Funds 

Special revernte funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 

Capital Projects Funds 

Capital projects fimds are used to account for the acquisition or construction of major capital 
facilities 

Debt Service Funds 

Debt service fimds are used to account for accumulation of resources for and payment of 
general long-term debt principal. interest, and related costs. 

Proprietary Fund-

 

Enterprise Fund 

The enterprise fund is used to account for operations (a) that are fmanced and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprise where the intent of the governing body is that the 
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be tinanced or recovered primarily through user charges: or (b) where the 
governing body has decided the periodic determination of revenues canted, expenses incurred, 
andlor net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
Operating expenses for the proprietary funds Include the cost of personal and contractual 
services, supplies and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this detinition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
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B. Basis of Pre.sentation (continued) 

Fiduciary Fund-

 

Custodial Funds 

Custodial funds are used to account thr assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an 
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, andor other funds. These 
funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results 
of operations. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accountin2. and Financial Statement Presentation 

The 2overnment-wide financial statements are reported using the econotnic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the propnetary fund and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues 
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recoglized as revenue as soon 
as all eli2ibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported usin2 the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Sales taxes are considered as "measurable" when in the 
hands of the Sales Tax Collector, and are recognized as revenue at that time. Ad Valorem taxes 
are recognized as revenue in the year ft.tr which budgeted, that is. in the year in which such taxes 
are billed and collected. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within 
the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 

For this purpose, the City considers revenues to he available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal period. Other major revenues that are considered susceptible to accrual 
include earned grant revenues, charges for services, and interest earned on investments. Franchise 
fees, licenses and permits, and court fines are recognized when received because they are not 
objectively measurable. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liahility is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, deht service expenditures. as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, post-
employment benefit obligations, pension expense and claims and judgments, are recorded only 
when payment is due. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

. General Fund-To  account for resources traditionally associated with governments that are not 
required to he accounted for in another fund. 

2. Capital Project!. Utility Impro‘ements Fund-To  account for revenues earned by the Utility 
SNstem's electrical production plant which are used for improvements to the Utility System. 
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C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Aecounting. and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

3. Capital Projects Sales Tax Fund-To account for the payment of the DEQ Bonds issued to 
construct a new wastewater treatment plant and to fund water and sewer fund maintenance. 

4. Capital Projects Street Fund-To account for the repairs and rehabilitation of streets within the 
City. 

American Rescue Plan Act Fund-To account for the receipt and disbursements of Coronavirus 
Fiscal Recovery Funds 

I). Budtcts and Budgetary Aceountimi 

Annual budgets are adopted and recorded in the accounting records for all governmental type funds. 
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements. 

1. At least forty-tive days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. the Mayor submits to the 
City Council a proposed budget in the form required by the City's Charter. 

At the meeting of the Council at which the operating budget is submitted, the Council 
orders a public hearing on the budget, and orders the official journal to publish at least ten 
days prior to such meeting, the time and place thereof, a general summary of the proposed 
budget. and the times and places where copies of the proposed budget are available for 
public inspection. 

3. Adoption of the budget is required no later than the last regular meeting of the last month 
of the tiscal year prior to the fiscal year for which the budget pertains 

4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control tool during the year. 
Funds in excess of the budgetary amounts cannot be obligated without the Finance 
Director's approval. Funds in excess of those budgeted for an entire department (or fund) 
cannot be obligated without the Mayor's approval. These procedures render control at the 
departmental:fund level. 

5. The budget can be amended after adoption, by the Mayor submitting an amended budget 
to the Council, and the adoption of the amended budget by the Council. 

6 All hudgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for the General. Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds are 
adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to 
governmental units. 

Budget amounts shown in the financial statements are as originally adopted. or as amended with 
procedures required by the City's charter. 
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E. Cash and Cash Investments 

The City has deposits in several types of highly liquid investment vehicles such as certificates of 
deposit. Since all of the City's cash is readily available, these deposits are listed in these statements 
as "Cash and Cash Equivalents- . Under State law. the City may deposit funds in demand deposits, 
interest-beanng demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks 
organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. The 
City may also purchase investments in securities backed by the full faith and credit of the United 
States Government 

F. Inventories 

Irn entories of supplies in the proprietary fund are valued at cost (moving average). 

G. Bad Debts 

Uncollectible amounts due for customer's utility recen ables are recoglized as bad debts through 
the establishment of an allowanee account at the time information becomes mailable which would 
indicate the uncollectihility of the particular receivable. Allowance for bad debts at May 31, 2023 
was S300,000, which was not changed from the priur year. 

H. Capital Assets 

Capital Assets. which include propertv, plant. equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., streets, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicahle governmental activities columns in the 
government-wide tinancial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated 
cost if historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated 
fair market value at the date of donation The City maintains a threshold level of 55.000 or more 
for capitalizing capital assets. 

The costs of nonnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets es are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and imprmements are 
capitalized as projects are constructed. All capital assets. other than land and construction in 
progress, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

Descnption Estimated Lives 

Sewer System 50 years 
\Vater & 50 years 
Buildines & building Improvements 40-50 years 
Streets & sidewalks 25 years 
Furniture & fixtures 5-7 years 
Vehicles 5-15 years 
Equipment 5-14 years 
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I. Compensated Absences 

Employees of the City earn vacation hours based on the numher of years of continuous service. 
Accrued vacation time is only allowed for full-time ernployees and not permanent part-time 
employees. Sick leave shall he aecrued by each full-time employee at a rate of 12 days per year. 

Vacation and sick leave may be accumulated from year to year. Upon termination-retirement, 
employees are entitled to be paid a maximum of 480 hours of sick leave. 480 hours vacation, and 
240 hours of compensatory time. These compensated absences are recorded as a liahility in each 
of the City's funds that have payroll expenditures. 

J. Interfund Transactions 

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the results of 
operations of both governmental and proprietary funds. 

The followinc! is a summary of interfund operating transfers: 

 

Operating 
Transfers In 

Operating 
Transfers Out 

General Fund ¶ 8,202,948 $ 1,317,300 

Special Revenue Funds-

   

Sales Tax Rededication 0 2.707.391 
Events Cin Operations /55,000 0 
Hazard Tax 0 1,014,000 
Sales Tax Police 0 1.702.000 
Airport Operations 51.375 0 
Employee Benefits 900,000 

 

Liability Insurance 849,000 0 
Workman's Cornpensation Fund 300.000 118.348 
Economic Development District 100.001 200.000 
Miss Merry Christmas 12,300 0 
2015 Re% enue Note Reserve Fund 245,000 

 

Cane River Green Market 25.500 0 
Sales Tax- District A 177.417 39,00(1 
Sales Tax- District C 0 369.417 
Economic Development District TIF A 0 45.000 

Capital Projects Funds-

   

Capital Improvements-Special 102.000 0 
Capital Projects-Sales Tax 0 1.350.00(1 
Capital Improvements - Streets 6(10,500 0 
LCDBG 275,000 0 
Sports Complex Constniction 231.000 0 

Debt Service Funds-

 

Debt Semce — Sales Tax 2,407,391 0 
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T. Interfund Transactions (eontinued) 

Transf-ers Transfers Out 
Enterprise Fund-

 

1.377,025 7,249,000 
Totals $16,111,456 SI6,111,456 

Transfers are primarily used to move funds: 

• From the Proprietary Fund to the General Fund so that excess revenues can be used for 
governmental services. 

• From the Proprietary Fund to the Capital Projects Funds to fund expansion of the Utility 
Fund. 

• From the Sales Tax Police Fund to the General Fund to cover cost of police operations. 
• From the Hazard Tax Fund tu the General Fund to fund cost of police and tire operations. 
• From the Capital Projects Sales Tax Fund to the Utility Improvements Fund for utility 

impro‘ement prgjects. 
• Other miscellaneous transfers to move operation monies to and from various funds. 

K. Prepaid Expenses 

Prepaid expense balances are for payments made by the City in the current year to provide sen ices 
occurring in the subsequent fiscal year, and for bond payments which are due immediately after the 
fiscal year end. 

L. Lon-term OblitiAtions 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liahilities in the governmental activities column of the statement of net position. 

In the fund financial statements. governmental fund types recognize debt issued as other financing 
sources. Repayment of the principal and interest is shown as an expenditure. 

M. Restricted Assets 

Certain resources of the Utility Fund are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because 
their use is limited hy bond ordinances, or hecause they represent customers' deposits being held 
by the fund. 

N. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the Net Pension Liability, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the retirement systems and additions toideductions from the fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported hy the retirement systems. For this purpose. 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. See note 8, for more information on the individual 
retirement systems. 
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O. Deferrecl Outflows Inflows of Resources 

The Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows and (or) deferred 
inflows of financial resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net 
position that applies to future periods and will not he recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense:expenditure) until the applicable period. Deferred inflows of resources represent an 
acquisition of net position that applies to future periotls and will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources until that time. 

P. Fund Equity 

In the fund staternents, governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. The following 
classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for 
which resources can he used: 

a. Nonspendahle fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as prepaid 
expenses) or are required to he maintained intact: 

b. Restricted fund halance - amounts constrained to specific purposes hy their providers (such 
as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional 
provisions. or by enabling legislation; 

c Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specitic purposes by a government itself, 
using its highest le% el of decision-making authority; to he reported as comrnitted, amounts 
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest level 
action 10 remove or change the constraint; 

d. Assigned fund balance - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose: intent 
can be expressed hy the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing 
body delegates the authority; 

e. Unassigned fitnd balance - amounts that are availahle for any purpose. Only the General 
Fund would report positive amounts in unassigned fund balance. 

The General Fund has an unassigned fund balance of $3,075,875. If applicable, the City would 
typically use restricted fund halances first. followed by committed resources and assigned resources 
as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources 
first and to defer the use of these other classified funds. 

Q. Net Position 

In the govermnent-wide statements, equit.y is classified as net position and displayed in three 
components: 

a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction. or improvement of those assets. 
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Q. Net Position (continued) 

h. Restricted net position - Consists of net resources with constraints placed on their use either 
by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors. contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments; or (2) law through constitutional pnwision or enabling legislation. 

c Unrestricted net position - All other net resources that do not meet the definition of 
"restrictee or "net investment in capital assets". 

When an expense is incurred for the purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position 
are available. management applies unrestricted net position first, unless a determination is made tu 
use restricted net position. The policy concerning which to apply first varies with the intended use 
and legal requirements. This decision is typically made by management at the incurrence of the 
expenses. 

R. Bond Issuance Costs 

Bond discounts and issuance costs are shown as expenditures in the current period for both 
governmentA and business-type acti% ities. 

S. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting pnnciples generally accepted 
in the United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

T. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Fur the purpose of the Statement of Net Positiun, "cash and cash equivalents-  includes all demand, 
savings accounts, and certificates of deposit of the City. For the purpose of the proprietary fund 
Statement of Cash Flows. "cash and cash equnalents" include all demand and savings accounts, 
and certificates of deposit. 

U. New Accounting, Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 96. "Subscription-Based InfOrmation Technology Arrangemenn (SBITAs)" 
provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information 
technology arrangements. This statement detines a SBITA, establishes that a SBITA results in a 
right of use asset, provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, 
and requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs 
are based on the standards established in GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The City adopted this 
standard effective June 1, 2022 and has determined that it has no effect on the financial statements 
for the year ended May 31, 2023. 
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Ad Valorem Taxes 

The City levies taxes on real and business personal property located within the boundaries of the City. 
Property taxes are levied by the City on property values assessed by the Natchitoches Parish Tax 
Assessor and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Commission. 

The Natchitoches Tax Commission bills and collects property taxes for the City. Collections are 
remitted to the City monthly. The City recognizes property tax revenues when levied. 

Property Tax Calendar 

Assessment date 
Levy date 
Tax bills mailed 
Total taxes are dur 
Penalties & interest added 
Lien date 
Tax sale 

January 1 
June 30 
October 15 
December 31 
January 31 
January 31 
May 15 

For the year ended May 31. 2023. taxes of 17M3 mills were le‘ird on property with an assessed 
valuation totaling $144,456,890 and were dedicated as follows: 

General Corporate Purposes 7.03 mills indefinite 
Special Taxes 10.00 mills expires 2028 

Total taxes collected were $2,510,384 after small adjustments were made to the original tax roll. A tax 
sale was held on May 15. 2023, and most uncollected taxes were collected on that date. Uncollected 
taxes average less than 2% of total taxes levied_ and no provision for uncollectibles i, inade. 

3. Lease Agreements 

The City of Natchitoches has entered into the following long-term lease agreement: 

Waterworks District Number 1 of Natchitoches Parish for a period of fifty years from 1980. 
This District was originally created to construct a water source, and furnish water to residents 
of Ward One of Natchitoches Parish. including those residents living within the City's 
boundaries. The agreement provides that the City operate the water system, including billing 
the consumers and collecting for services, furnishing all labor, materials, and equipment to 
operate and maintain the system. The agreement calls for the City to lease the water system 
from the Water District for an annual payment of $3,600. The Waterworks District retains 
control of and responsibility for the water source. 
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4 Receivables 

The following iti a summary of receivahles at May 31, 2(123. 

Sales Tax $2,226,346 
Licenses 158.983 
Charges for Services - Utilities 4.942.492 
Nliscellaneous 564 077 

Total $7.891.898 

All reeehables for the governmental funds are considered to be collectible, and no allowance for bad 
deht is used. Allowance for bad debts tbr the proprietary funds is $300,000. 

Capital Asset!.  

Capital assets and depreciation activitv as of and for the year ended Mav 31. 2023. is as follows. 

Governmental Activities: 
General Fund-

 

Capital Assets; not depreciated-

 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Endine 
Balance 

    

Land $ (1,415,033 $ 0 S 0 S 11,415,033 
Constniction in Progress 2,381.5(17 1.260,925 2,170.644 1,471.788 

Capital Assets: depreciated-

     

Buildings 19,948,375 568.966 0 20,517,341 
Other Infrastructure 34,496,085 3,493.97'6 0 37,990,011 
Other Assets 827,117 0 0 827,117 
Furniture & Fixtures 15.104 0 0 15.104 
Machinery & Equipment 4,834.273 586,903 0 5,421.176 
Vehicles 5.108,53' 463.594 53,976 5,518,150 
Streets 92.561,314 0 0 92,561,314 
Sidewalks 5,547.865 0 0 5,547.865 

Total Assets $177,135,205 $6,374,314 $2,224,620 5181,2£4,899 

Accumulated Depreciation-

     

Buildmes $ 8,184.211 S 608,998 S 0 $ 8,793.209 
Other Infrastnicture 7,713.835 1.622,719 0 9,336.554 
Other Assets 827.115 0 0 827.115 
Furniture & Fixtures 15,104 0 0 15.104 
Machinery & Equipment 3.347,65' 411.697 0 3,779,349 
Vehicles 4,185.810 428,393 53.976 4,560.227 
Streets 90,178.977 3271.i07 0 90,506.584 
Sidewalks 5,323,403 46,63/ 0 5,370,035 

Total Accumulated Depr. '1, 1 19.7'6,107 $3,466.046 S,; 53,976 S123,188.177 
Total Capital Assets, Net S 57,359,098  S2.908,2 68  S2,170,644 S  58.096,722 
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5. Capital Assets (continued) 

Depreciation expense of $3.466,046 for the year ended May 31, 2023, was charged to the following 
governmental functions: 

General Fund-

 

Finance Department $ 58.517 
Community Development Department 885.745 
Planning & Zoning 5.490 
Fire Department 249.764 
Recreation Department 405.107 
Public Works Department 535,836 
Purchasing Department 30.316 
Pohce Department 320.995 

Airport Fund 670.145 
Convention Center 241,673 
Industrial Park South 62,50S 

Total .S3.466.046 

Business-type Activities 
Utility Fund-

 

Capital Assets; not deprec iated-

 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

    

Land $ 937.995 $ 0 $ 0 $ 937,995 
Capital Assets; depreciated-

     

Buildings 1,912.581 49,316 0 1,961.897 
Furniture & Fixtures 310.366 0 0 310.366 
Machinery & Equipment 10.891,269 514,500 0 11,405,769 
Vehicles 2.206,852 98,057 24.745 2,280,164 
Electric System 24,869.087 116.094 0 24,985.181 
Water System 44,771,785 706.947 0 45.478.732 
Sewer System 26,828,669 893,0'8 0 /7,7-1 1.697 

Total A ssets 5112,728,604 $2 377 941 $ 24 745 $115,081,801 

Accumulated Depreciation-

     

Buildings $ 1,131.826 $ 39,1 38 $ u S 1,171.064 
Furniture & Fixtures 310,366 0 0 31(1.366 
Machinery & Equipment 10.317,011 194,165 0 10,511,176 
Velucles 2,169.543 23,476 24.745 2,168.274 
Electric System 1(1,409.214 467.01( ti 1(1,876.225 
Water System 17.830,375 959,505 0 18.789,880 
Sewer System 12.527,548 538,240 0 13.065.788 

Total Accumulated Depr. S 54,695.883 S 2.121.635 5, 24.745 $ 56.891.773 

Total Net Assets $ 58.032,721 S 156,306 $ 0 3 58,189.028 
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5. Capital Assets (continued) 

Depreciation expense of $2,221,635 for the year ended May 31, 2013, was charged to the following 
business-type functions: 

Electnc System 
Water System 
Sewer System 

Total Utility Fund 

6. Long-Term Debt 

$ 531.665 
1,079,125 

6l(t.S45 
!)2,221.635 

General Obligation- At May 31, 2023. the City had the following outstanding general obligation bond 
issues: 

1) Capital lease with option to purchase financed through Southside Bank for a fire rescue truck 
and payments began in December 2017. The original loan was for $250,000 and is to he repaid 
o‘er 1() years by the Hazard Tax Fund. 

2) Note payable with Carbecca, LLC for the purchase of land at Rapides Drive. The original loan 
was for $290,000 and is to be repaid over five years from the Hazard Tax Fund This note was 
paid in full as of May 31, 2023. 

3) Note payable with BB&T (:iovernmental Finance thr the purpose of purchasing two pumper 
trucks for the fire department. The original loan was fbr $515,824 and is to be repaid over five 
vears from the Hazard Tax Fund. 

4) Note payable with Altec Financial for the purpose of purchasing a 2023 Freightliner for the 
utility department. The original loan was for $389,500 and is to be repaid over five years frorn 
the Utility Iinpro‘ements-Cleco Fund. 

5) Note payable with Guillett Realty for the purpose of purchasing land and a building for the 
public works departinent. The original loan was for $512,500 and is to be repaid Over three 
years from the Capital Pu-)jects-special Fund 

Revcnue Bonds- The City has issued several series of bonds for improvements to the utility system, 
and also to reftmd other bond is.sues. All of these debt issues are secured by the revenues of the Utility 
Fund. These revenue hond issues are. 

I) Series 2021 Utilities Revenue Reftmding Bonds — As of March 1, 2021. the City authorized 
issuance of utilities revenue refunding bonds, series 2021 in the amount of 53,615,000 to fund 
the redemption of the following honds: a) Series 2009A Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds. 
b) Series 2009B Utilities Revenue Refimdmg Bonds. and c) 2015 Taxable Utilities Re% enue 
Bonds. 

2) Series 2021 Sales Tax Refimding Bonds — As of September 1, 2021, the City authorized issuance 
of Series 2021 Sales Tax RefUnding Bonds in the amount of $11,165.000 to fund the redemption 
of the following bonds: a) Series 2018 Sales Tax Bonds and b) Series 2019 Sales Tax Bonds. 
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3) Series 2015 Taxable Revenue Note - For the year ended May 31, 2016, the City authorized the 
issuance of revenue bonds, not to exceed $2,000,000, to provide financial assistance to Industrial 
Development Board (IDB). a private sector entity for the acquisition, construction, and 
equipping of an approximately £;7-room hotel facility and parking facilities to be located within 
the geographical boundaries of the City, and to pay the costs of issuance of the note. The bonds 
are secured by pledge of IDB annual payment, the Economic Development District tax, and 
excess revenues and are payable solely by IDB. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of 
the property and facilities transfer to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. 
Neither the City, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for 
repavment of the bonds 

4) Series 2022 Revenue Bonds — - For the vear ended May 31, 2023. the City authorized the 
issuance of revenue bonds, not to exceed $2,000,000, to funding for the extension and 
improvement the Texas and Pacific Railway Depot. 

General C)bligation and Revenue Bonds Outstandin.c! at May 31, 2023, are as follows. 

 

Issue Final Maturity Interest Balance 
Issue Date Date Rates Outstanding 

General Obligation-

     

Southside Bank 12-01-2017 11-01-2026 1.99o. S 108,922 
Altec Financial 06-01-2023 06-01-2028 7.55°.h 289.500 
Guinea Realty 06-01-21122 116-01-2025 0.00°o 302.5IHI 
BB&T Governmental Finance 10-15-2018 1I1-15-2023 3.84°. 111.227 

Total Generul Obligation Debt 

   

S 812.149 
Revenue Bonds-

     

Series 2015 Reftmding 12-01-2015 12-01-2029 4.30°0 $ 1.206,001) 
Series 2021 Utihties Revenue 06-01-2021 12-01-2030 1.49°.h 2.905.000 
Series 2021 Sales Tax Refunding 09-01-2021 09-01-2033 '.75°.0 10.255.000 
Series 2022 Utilities Revenue (13-01-2022 12-01-1030 1.49°. 200.000 

Total Revenue Bonds 

   

S16.366.000 

Total General Obligation and Revenue Bonds Payable 

 

S17,178,148 

The annual debt service requirements to maturity of general ohligation debt and re% enue bonds outstanding 
at May 31, 2023. excluding interest payments of $2.974,206 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
May 31 

General 
Obligation 

Revenue 
Bonds Tota) 

2024 $362.520 $ 1.443,000 $ 1,805.520 
2025 '01.38,  1.472,000 1,674.382 
2026 84.834 1,535.000 1.619,834 
2027 90.B2 1,569,000 1,659.132 
2028 72.280 1.609.000 1.681.280 

2029-2033 0 7.089,000 7,089.0011 
2034-2038 0 583,000 583,000 
2039-2043 0 475.000 475,000 
2034-2048 0 591,000 591.000 

Total $812 148 $16.366,0181 $17,178.148 
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The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt. including accrued compensated absences. net 
other postemployment benefits (OPEB), and net pension liability for the vear ended May 31, 2023. 

 

Balance 
K-01-22 _Additions Reductions 

Balance 
(15-31-23 

General Obligation $ 402,470 $ 902.000 $ 492,322 $ 812,148 
Re% enue Bonds 15.249.166 13,130,000 12.013,166 16366,000 
Compensated Absences 2,74 71,531 194,631 (1 2,937.162 
Net C)PEB Obligation 6.152.8S3 3,376.383 0 9.5 '9,166 
Net Pension Liability 15.025,399 10,476,251 0 25.501,650 

Total S39,572,449 S28,079,265 S12,505.488 S55,146,226 

7. Flow of Funds. Restriction on Use-Enterprise Fund 

Under the terms of the bond indentures relating to Utility Revenue Bonds, all income and revenues 
(hereinafter referred to as revenue) of every nature, earned or derived from operations of the Utihty 
System are pledged and dedicated to the retirement of said bonds, and are to he set aside into the 
following special accounts: 

1. Out of revenue, to the "Operations and Maintenance Account", an amount sufficient to provide for 
expenses of the system. 

Each month, there should be set aside into an account called the "Sinking Funcr an amount 
constituting 1/12 of the next maturing yearly installment principal payment. and 1.'6 of the next six 
month interest payment. These funds can only be used for payment of bond principal and interest. 

3. There should also be set aside into a "Bond Reserve Account". an amount equal to 20% of the 
principal and interest payments required during the current fiscal year until there shall have been 
accumulated in the Reserve Account an amount equal to the maximum principal and interest 
requirements in any one maturity year. These monies may be used only for the payment of maturing 
bonds and interest for which sufficient funds are not on deposit in the "Bond and Interest 
Redemption Accoure. 

4 Funds must also be set aside into a "Contingency Account" at the rate of 7% of the adjusted income 
of the Utility Fund. Money in this account rnay also be used to pay principal and interest on the 
bonds falling due at a time when there is not sufficient money for payment in the other bond funds. 
This fund can be used for major repairs to the system. The amount in the account should not he 
reduced below S15.000. No payment is required to he made into this fund anytime the balance 
equals or exceeds $1,000,000. 

5 All of the revenue received in any fiscal year and not required to be paid in such tiscal year into 
any of the abo‘ e noted funds shall be regarded a.s surplus and may be used for any law fill purpose. 
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Substantially all employees of the City are members of the Municipal Employees Retirement System 
of Louisiana (MERS), Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MPERS), 
Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana (FRS), or the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement 
System (LASERS). These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by separate boards of trustees. Pertinent information relative to each plan follows: 

A. General Information about the Plans  

Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS)  

Plan Description 

MERS was originally established by Act 356 of the 1954 regular session of the Legislature of the 
State of Louisiana to provide retirement benefits to employees of all incorporated villages, towns and 
cities within the state, which did not have their own retirement system and which elected to become 
members of MERS. 

Act 569 of the year 1968 established by the Legislature of the State of Louisiana provides an optional 
method for municipalities to cancel Social Security and come under supplementary benefits in MERS, 
effective on and after June 30, 1970. Effective October 1, 1978, under Act 788, the "regular plan" 
and the "supplemental plan" were replaced and are now known as Plan "A" and Plan "B". Plan A 
combines the original plan and the supplemental plan for those municipalities participating in both 
plans, while Plan B participates in only the original plan. 

Membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date employed if the 
employee is on a permanent basis working at least 35 hours per week. Individuals paid jointly by a 
participating employer and the parish are not eligible for membership in MERS with exceptions as 
outlined in the statutes. MERS issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for the System, which can be obtained 
at www. 1 la . state . la .us . 

Benefits Provided 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Retirement 

Any member of Plan A who commenced participation prior to January 1, 2013 can retire providing 
he meets one of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with twenty-five or more years of creditable service. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten years of creditable service. 
3. Any age with 20 years of creditable service, exclusive of military service and unused annual 

and sick leave, with an actuarially reduced early benefit. 
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Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan A shall consist 
of an amount equal to three percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by his years of 
creditable service. Final compensation is the average monthlv earnings during the highest sixty 
consecutive months. or joined months if service was interrupted. However, under certain conditions 
as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. An additional regular 
retirement benefit can be received for any city marshal or deputy city marshal See Plan Booklet for 
further details. 

Any member of Plan A Tier 2 can retire providing he meets one of the following criteria: 

I. Age 67 with seven years of creditable service. 
2. Age 62 with ten years of creditable service. 
3. Age 55 with thirty years of creditable service. 
4. Any age with twenty five years of creditable service, exclusive of military service and unused 

annual and sick leave. with an actuarially reduced early benetit. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan A Tier 2 shall 
consist of an amount equal to two percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditahle service. Final compensation is the a‘ erage monthly earnings during the highest sixty 
consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted. 

Survivor's Benefits 

Upon the death of any member of Plan A with five or more years of creditable service, not eligible 
for normal retirement, the plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse and minor children 
as outlined in the statutes. 

Any member of Plan A who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves a 
sun it ing spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the 
surviving spouse on the date of death Such benefits will hegin only upon proper application and 
are paid in lieu of any other survivor benefits. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) 

In lieu of ternunating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of 
Plan A who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in DROP for up to three years and defer the 
receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer contributions are payable but 
employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would be payable, had the 
person elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the 
DROP Fund. Interest is earned when the member has completed DROP participation. Interest 
earnings are based upon the actual rate of return on the investments identified as DRC)P funds for 
the period. In addition, no cost-of-living increases are payable to participants until employment 
which made them eligihle to become members of the MERS has been terminated thr at least one 
full year. 
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Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a 
participant in DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the payments 
into the account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or any other method 
of payment if approved by the board of trustees. If a participant dies during participation in DROP, 
a lump sum equal to the balance in his account shall be paid to his named beneficiary or, if none, 
to his estate. If employment is not terminated at the end of the three years, payments into the 
DROP fund cease and the person resumes active contributing membership in MERS. 

Disability Benefits 

For Plan A, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if they have at least 
five years of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement, and has been officially 
certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, 
a member of Plan A shall be paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of (1) an amount equal to 
three percent of the member's current final compensation multiplied by his/her years of creditable 
service, but not less than forty-five percent of his final compensation, or (2) an amount equal to 
what the member's normal retirement benefit would be based on the member's current final 
compensation, but assuming the member remained in continuous service until his earliest normal 
retirement age and using those retirement benefit computation factors which would be applicable 
to the member's normal retirement. 

Cost-of-Living Increases 

MERS is authorized under state law to grant a cost of living increase to members who have been 
retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for 
each full calendar year since retirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available 
from investment income in excess of normal requirements. State law allows MERS to grant 
additional cost of living increases to all retirees and beneficiaries who are age sixty-five and above 
equal to 2% of the benefit being received on October 1, 1977, or the original benefit, if retirement 
commenced after that date. 

Deferred Benefits 

Both plans provide for deferred benefits for members who terminate before being eligible for 
retirement. Once the member reaches the appropriate age for retirement, benefits become payable. 
Benefits are based on statutes in effect at time of withdrawal. 

Contributions 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined 
each year. For the year ending June 30, 2022, the employer contribution rate was 29.50% of 
member's earnings for Plan A. 
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According to state statute, MERS also receives one-fourth (1/4) of 1% of ad valorem taxes collected 
within the respective parishes except for Orleans. Tax monies are apportioned between Plan A and 
Plan B in proportion to salaries of plan participants. MERS also receives revenue sharing funds 
each year as appropriated by the Legislature. These additional sources of income are used as 
additional employer contributions and considered support from non-employer contributing entities, 
but are not considered special funding situations. The non-employer contribution was $196,995. 

The City's contractually required composite contribution rate for the year ended May 31, 2023 
29.50% of annual payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with 
an additional amount to finance any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. 

Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $1,656,119 for the year ended May 31, 2023. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS)  

Plan Description 

MPERS was established by and the benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and 
amended by Louisiana Revised Statutes 11:2211 — 11:2233. Participants should refer to the 
appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Membership is mandatory for any full-time police officer employed by a municipality of the State of 
Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests, provided he or she does not 
have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. MPERS issues an 
annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the System, which can be obtained at www.lampers.org or 
www.11a. state . la.us. 

Benefits Provided 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information 

Retirement 

Membership Prior to January 1, 2013  

A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of MPERS and has 25 years 
of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or has 12 years 
creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member 
of MPERS for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 
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Benefit rates are 3.33% of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the highest 
36 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years of creditable 
service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving 
spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range from 
40% to 60% of the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each 
child under age 18 receives benefits equal to 10% of the member's average final compensation or 
$200 per month, whichever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January 1, 2013  

Membership eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, disability and survivor benefits are 
based on Hazardous Duty and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, 
a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of MPERS and has 25 years 
of creditable service at any age or has 12 years creditable service at age 55. Under the Non Hazardous 
Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of MPERS and 
has 30 years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable service at age 55, or 10 years of 
creditable service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for early retirement after he 
has been a member of MPERS for 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially 
reduced benefit from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are 3% (generally) and 
2.5%, respectively, of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the highest 60 
consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years of creditable 
service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving 
spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range from 
25% to 55% of the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each 
child under age 18 receives 10% of average final compensation or $200 per month whichever is 
greater. If deceased member had less than 10 years of service, beneficiary will receive a refund of 
employee contributions only. 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 

The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) 
computed on the amount of the current regular retirement, disability, beneficiary or survivor's 
benefit, not to exceed 3% in any given year. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 2% 
COLA, computed on the member's original benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, survivors and 
beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or older on the cut-off date which determines eligibility. 
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No regular retiree, survivor or beneficiary shall be eligible to receive a cost-of-living adjustment 
until benefits have been received at least one full fiscal year and the payment of such COLA, when 
authorized, shall not be effective until the lapse of at least one-half of the fiscal year. Members 
who elect early retirement are not eligihle for a cost-of-living adjustment until they reach retirement 
age. 

A COLA may only be ranted if fUnds are available front interest earnings in excess of normal 
requirements, as determined by the actuary. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plau (DROP) 

A member is eligible to elect to enter DROP when he is eligible for regular retirement based on the 
members' sub plan participation. Upon tiling the application for the program, the employee's 
active membership MPERS is terminated. At the entry date into DRC)P, the employee and 
employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited into the DROP account is equal to the 
benefit computed under the retirement plan elected by the participant at date of apphcation. The 
duration of participation in the DROP is 36 months or less. If employment is terminated after the 
three-year period the participant may receive his benefits hy lump sum payment or a true annuity. 
If employment is not terminated, active contributing membership into NIPERS shall resume and 
upon later termination, he shall receive additional retirement benefits based on the additional 
service. For those elOble to enter DROP prior to January I. 2004, DROP accounts shall earn 
interest subsequent to the termination of DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage 
point below the percentage rate of return of MPERS' investment portfolio as certified by the actuary 
on an annual basis but will never lose money. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to 
January 1, 2004, an irrevocable election is made to earn interest based on MPERS' investment 
portfolio return or a money market investment return. This could result in a negative earnings rate 
being applied to the account. 

If the member elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to a government 
money market account and earn interest at the money market rate 

Initial Benefit Option Plan 

In 1999, the State Legislature authorized MPERS to establish an Initial Benefit Option program. 
Initial Benefit C)ption is available to members who are eligible for regular retirement and have not 
participated in DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one-time single sum 
payment of up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefits, plus a reduced monthly 
retirement benefit for life. Interest is computed on the balance based on the sarne criteria as DROP. 

Contributions 

Contributions for all members are actuarially determined as required by state law but cannot be less 
than 9‘!•0 of the employees' earnable compensation excluding overtime but including state 
supplemental pay. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2022, the employer and employee contribution rates for all members 
hired prior to January 1, 2013 and Hazardous Duty members hired after January 1, 2013 were 
33.75% and 10%, respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for all Non 
Hazardous Duty members hired after January 1, 2013 were 33.75% and 8%, respectively. The 
employer and employee contribution rates for all members whose earnable compensation is less 
than or equal to the poverty guidelines issued by the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services were 36.25% and 7.5%, respectively. 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. The 
tax is considered support from a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each 
year based on an actuarial study. Non-employer contributions of $173,094 are recognized as 
revenue, but are not considered special funding situations. 

The City's contractually required composite contribution rate for the year ended May 31, 2023 was 
29.75% of annual payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with 
an additional amount to finance any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. 

Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $716,159 for the year ended May 31, 2023. 

Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana (FRS)  

FRS was established by Act 434 of 1979 to provide retirement, disability and survivor benefits to 
firefighters in Louisiana. The projections of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension 
liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through FRS in 
accordance with benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force 
at the measurement date. 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 434 of 1979 and amended by Louisiana Revised Statutes 
11:2251 — 11:2272. The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided 
for general information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more 
complete information. 

Any person who becomes an employee as defined in RS 11:2252 on and after January 1, 1980, shall 
become a member as a condition of employment. Membership in FRS consist of full-time 
firefighters, eligible employees of the retirement system, or any person in a position as defined in the 
municipal fire and police civil service system that earns at least $375 per month, excluding state 
supplemental pay, and are employed by a fire department of any municipality, parish, or fire 
protection district of the State of Louisiana. 

No person who has attained age 50 or over shall become a member of FRS, unless the person becomes 
a member by reason of a merger or unless FRS received an application for membership before the 
applicant attained the age of 50. No person who has not attained the age of 18 years shall become a 
member of FRS. 
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Any person who has retired from service under any retirement system or pension fund maintained 
basically for public officers and employees of the state, its agencies or political subdivisions, and who 
is receiving retirement benefits therefrom may become a member of FRS, provided the person meets 
all other requirements for membership. Service credit from the retirement system or pension plan 
from which the member is retired shall not be used for reciprocal recognition of service with FRS, or 
for any other purpose in order to attain eligibility or increase the amount of service credit in FRS. 

FRS issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System, which can be obtained at 
www.lafirefightersret.com or www.11a.state.la.us. 

Benefits Provided 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Retirement 

Employees with 20 or more years of service who have attained age 50, or employees who have 12 
years of service who have attained age 55, or 25 years of service at any age are entitled to annual 
pension benefits equal to 3.333% of their average final compensation based on the 36 consecutive 
months of highest pay multiplied by their total years of service, not to exceed 100%. Employees may 
elect to receive their pension benefits in the form of a joint and survivor annuity. 

If employees terminate before completing 12 years of service, they forfeit the right to receive the 
portion of their accumulated plan benefits attributable to their employer's contributions. 

Benefits are payable over the retirees' lives in the form of a monthly annuity. An employee may elect 
an unreduced benefit or any of seven options at retirement. 

See R.S. 11:2256(A) for additional details on retirement benefits. 

Disability Benefits 

A member who acquires a disability, and who files for disability benefits while in service, and who 
upon medical examination and certification as provided for in Title 11, is found to have a total 
disability solely as the result of injuries sustained in the performance of his official duties, or for 
any cause, provided the member has at least five years of creditable service and provided that the 
disability was incurred while the member was an active contributing member in active service, shall 
be entitled to disability benefits under the provisions of R.S. 11:2258(B). 

Death Benefits 

Benefits shall be payable to the surviving eligible spouse or designated beneficiary of a deceased 
member as specified in R.S. 11:2256(B) & (C). 
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Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) 

After completing 20 years of creditable service and attaining the age of 50 years. or 25 years at any 
age, a member may elect to participate in DROP for up to 36 months. 

Upon commencement of participation in DROP, employer and employee contributions to FRS 
cease. The monthly retirement benefit that would have been payable is paid into the member's 
DROP account. Upon termination of employment, a participant in the program has several options 
to receive their DROP benefit. A member may (1) elect to roll over all or a portion of their DROP 
balance into another eligible qualified plan, (2) receive a lump-sum payment front the account. (3) 
receive single withdrawals at the discretion of the member, (4) receive monthly or annual 
withdrawals. or (5) receive annuity based on the DROP accourit balance. These withdrawals are in 
addition to his regular monthly benefit. 

If employment is not terminated at the end of the 36 months, the participant resumes regular 
contnbutions to FRS. No withdrawals may be made fiom the DROP account until the participant 
retires. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan 

Effecti‘e June 16, 1999. members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP 
may elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an initial benefit option (IB()) in an amount up to 36 
months of benefits. with an actuarial reduction of their tuture benefits. Such amounts may be 
withdrawn or remain in the IBO account earning interest at the same rate as the DROP account. 

Cost-of-Living Increases 

Under the provisions of R.S. 11:246 and 11:2260(A 7). the board of trustees is authorized to grant 
retired members and widows of members who have retired an annual cost-of-living adjustment 
(COLA) increase of up to 3% of their current benefit, and all retired members and widows who are 
65 years of age and older a 2°.;) increase in their original benefit. In order for the board to grant 
either of these increases, FRS must meet certain criteria detailed in the statute related to funding 
status and interest earnings tR.S. 11:243). In lieu of these COLAs, pursuant to R.S. 11:241, the 
board may also grant an increase based on a formula equal to up to SI times the total number of 
vears of credited sen ice accrued at retirement or at death of the member or retiree plus the number 
of years since retirement or since dearth of the member or retiree to FRS's fiscal vear end preceding 
the payment of the benefit increase. If there are not sufficient funds to fund the benefit at the rate 
of one dollar per year for such total number of years. then the rate shall he reduced in proportion to 
the amount of funds that are available to fund the COLA. 

Coraribritions 

Employer contributions are actuariallv determined each year. For the measurement date of June 
30, 2022, employer and employee contributions for members ahove the poverty line were 32.25% 
and 10%. respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for those members below 
the poverty line were 34 25% and 8.0%, respectively. 
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8. Employee Retirement Systems (continued) 

According to state statute, FRS receives insurance premium assessments from the State of 
Louisiana as additional employer contributions. The assessment is considered support from a non-
contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year based on an actuarial study. Non-
employer contributions of $244,604 are recognized as revenue, but are not considered special 
funding situations. 

The City's contractually required composite contribution rate for the year ended May 31, 2023 was 
33.75% of annual payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with 
an additional amount to finance any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. Contributions to the 
pension plan from the City were $750,639 for the year ended May 31, 2023. 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions  

At May 31, 2023, the City reported a total of $25,972,631 for its proportionate share of the Net 
Pension Liabilities of the Plans. 

Plan Measurement Date 

 

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 
MERS $11,488,759 $12,013,711 
MPERS 7,953,737 7,789,871 
FRS 6,059,154 6,118,929 
LASERS 0 50,120 
Total $25,501,650 $25,972,631 

The Net Pension Liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used 
to calculate the Net Pension Liabilities were determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates. 
The City's proportion of the Net Pension Liabilities was based on the employer's contribution effort 
to the plan for the current fiscal year as compared to the total of all employers' contribution effort 
to the plan for the current fiscal year. At the measurement dates, the City's proportions of each 
were as follows: 

Plan Proportionate Share 

 

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 
MERS 2.766220% 2.681650% 
MPERS 0.77812% 0.83646% 
FRS 0.85930% 0.87689% 
Total 4.403640% 4.394800% 



Page 55 

City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31. 2023 

8 Employee Retirement Svstems ( continued) 

For the year ended May 31, 2023 and 2022, the City recognized pension expense including 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contnbutions and proportionate share of contnbutions as follows: 

Plan Measurement I)ate 

 

June 30, 102' June 30. 2021 
NIERS 51,522,668 li 398.859 
MPERS 1.222.784 285,341 
FRS 908.442 2 5s,098 
Total 53,653,894 ,̀4.169.69N 

At May 31, 2023, the City reported deferred outflowti of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

Municipal Employees Municipal Police Firefighteis Total 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Deferred 
Inflows 

Defened 
Outflows 

Deferred 
Intlows 

Defened 
Outtlows 

Defened 
Inflows 

De fel-red 
Oxitflows 

Deferied 
Inflow, 

Difference between expected 
and actual expel ienee 

¶ 13.568 c 43,993 ¶ 39."8 S 64.816 % 36.'15 ¶ '85 596 ¶ 89 011 ¶ 501.0,2 

C hanges m As-,naiption 111.30(1 0 374.36n 59.159 -199,621 0 985.281 127 1 91 
Net Different. e between 

piorected and acrwl earnings 
oft pension plan 

1.911.681 0 1 419.992 0 1.372,557 U 4,704.230 6.069 36n 

Chauees in employer's 
pH  vorfion of beg NPL 

1 97. 016 
' 359 

14, o 5 380.01 86.SO 1 ,7.of., 5 '83.87 6 599,85 
9 

Di tference between emi Ili iyei 
and proportionate share of 

contribuitons 
n so 035 P.m 0.971 909 -1 1-11 18.0(19 36 •)72 

Silbsequeut meastirouent 
cinuribiltioirs 

1.533.371 o 659.102 U 692,878 0 ',885.351 0 

Total S3.766.936 S "7,990 ¶2.409.782 S 511.457 S2.689,04U ¶ 467.705 $8.865.75R $1,207 152 

The dekned outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions suhsequent 
to the measurement date in the amount of $2,308,587 will be recognized as a reduction of the Net 
Pension Liabilities in the year May 31, 2023. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred intlows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follovoc 

Year ended 
Ma‘ 31. 

 

2023 S 344.581 
2024 699,640 
/0)5 69-1.933 
2026 537.0?9 
2027 35,499 
2028 (1,095) 
Total 52.308.587 



Palie 56 

City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31. 2023 

8 Employee Retirement Svstems ( continued) 

.4etutnial AssumpuonA 

A summary a the actuarial rnethods and assumptions used in determining the total pension 
liabilities for the valuation date of June 30. 2022 are as follows: 

A,,sum )iions MERS MPERS FRS 

Actuarial cog method 
Entry age 

normal cost 
Entry age normal 

cost 
Entry zige normal 

cost 
Expected remaining, 
sery ice lives 3 years 4 years 7 wars 

Investment rate 
of return 

6.85%. net of 
pension plan 
investment 
expense. 
including 
inflation 

6 75u O. net of 
investment 
expense. 

including inflation 

6.90e0, net of 
investment 
expense. 

Including inflation 

Inflation rate 2.500"o 2 )000 u 2.500'0 

Salary increases 

Varies from 
4.50 0 to 6.4°0 
depending on 

years of 
service 

Varies frorn 
4.70% to 12 30% 

depending on 
years of service 

Varies from 
5.20° o to 14.10°0 

depend= on 
years of service 

Mortality rates for MERS were based on PubG-2010(B) Healthy Retiree Table set equal to 120% for 
males and females, each adjusted using their respective male and female MP2018 scales were selected 
for annuitants and beneficiaries. Pub6-2010(B) Employee Table set equal to 120% for males and 
females, each adjusted using their respective niale and female MP2018 scales %vas selected for 
employees. PubNS-2010(B) Disabled Retiree Table set equal to 120% for males and females, each 
adjusted using their respective male and female MP2018 scales was selected for disabled annuitants. 
The actuarial assumptions used were based on the results of an experience study, for the period July 
2014 through June 30, 2019. 

1%lortality rates for MPERS were based on RP-2000 Combined Healthy with Blue Collar Adjustment 
Sex Distinct Tables projected to 2029 by Scale AA (set back 1 year for females) for healthy annuitants 
and beneficiaries. RP-2000 Disabled Li% es Table set back 5 years for males and Net hack 3 years for 
females for disabled annuitants. RP-2000 Employee Table set back 4 years flir males and 3 years for 
females for active members. The mortality rate assumptions used was set based upon an expenence 
study perfonned by the prior actuary on plan data for the period ofJuly l, 2014 through June 30, 2019 
and review of similar law enforcement mortality. 

Mortality rates for FRS were hased on RP-2000 Combined Healthy with Blue Collar Adjustment Sex 
Distinct Tables projected to 2031 using Scale AA for ernployees, annuitants and beneficiaries. RP-
2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table set back tive years for males and set back three years for females 
for disabled annuitants. Setbacks in these tables were used to approxirnate mortality improvement. 
The niortality rate assumption was based upon an experience study performed by the prior actuary on 
plan data tim thr period of July 1, 2014 through June 30. 2019. 
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8 Employee Retirement Svstems ( continued) 

Mortality rates for LASERS were based on RP-2014 Healthy Mortality Table with mortality 
improvement projected mine the MP-2018 Mortality Improvement Scale, applied on a fully 
generational basis for non-disabled members. RP-2000 Disabkd Retiree Mortahty Table, with no 
projection for mortality improvement for disabled members Termination, disability, and retirement 
assumptions were based upon an experience study performed hy the prior actuary on plan data for the 
period of 2014-2019. 

The long-term expected rate of return on NIERS, MPERS, FRS, and LASERS pension plan 
investments was detennined using a building-block method in which best estimate ranges of 
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

These rates are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return hy weighting the 
expected future real rates of return hy the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing 'diversification 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in pensions 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table. 

 

MERS MPERS FRS 

Asset Class Target 
1,,,er 

A lloe. 

Long-Tenn 
Expected 
Portfolio 

Real Rate of 

Target 
Asset 

Alloc. 

Long-Terry 
Expected 
Portfolio 

Real Rare of 

Target 
Asset 

Alloc. 

Long-Term 
Expected 

Portfolio Real 

    

Rate of Reuirn 

Return Retuni 

 

Public Equity 53 00% 2.3 Igo 55.50% 3.6no. 56.00'4 25 27% 

Public Fixed Income SS 00°, 1 65(tb S0 50% 0.N59,, '-'0.00“,, 4 S4'!” 

Alternatives 0  00u r. 0 30( ,, I 4 00% ().(hc,, I ti.00',, 14 84?. 

Other 0 ittri, 0.0M,i 0 i tiro ti.otr,, it.00vti 18 45'!i, 

Totals lii0.00',. 4.35°,, li (0.00% 5.400. 100.0(P:i 54 6,Oi) 

Inflation 

 

2.60°ci 

 

2.66°. 

 

2.50% 

Expected Notunial Rate of 
Return 

 

6 950i, 

 

is.06", 

 

6 90% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6 85% for MERS, 6 75% for 
MPERS, and 6.90% for FRS. The projection of cash flows used to deternnne the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and 
that contributions from participating employers will he made at the actuanally determmed 
contribution rates, which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the 
Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those 
assumptions. MERS, MPERS. FRS, and LASERS fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all prgjected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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8 Employee Retirement Svstems (continued) 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Lkibility ro Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liahilities using the 
discount rates as shown above, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the Net Pension 
Liabilities would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or 
one percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

1.0',..0 Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.0','.0 Increase 
NIERS S15,/$2, )90 SII.488,759 SS,263,343 
MPERS $11,133,709 $ 7,953,737 $5,297,408 
FRS S 8,963,g46 S 6,059,154 S3,636,436 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plans' fiduciary net positions are available in the separately 
issued financial statements of the Plans. 

Payables to tlie Pension Plan 

There are no payahle to the pension plan at Niav 3 l, 2023. 

9 Pending LitigationlContingencies 

Various lawsuits are presently pending against the City of Natchitoches. Attorneys for the City are of 
the opinion that any judonents rendered in favor of the plaintiffs or payments resulting from 
compromise settlements, if any, will be within the limits of the ‘arious insurance coverages carned by 
the City. 

10. Cash and Investments 

The cash and cash equnalents of the City are subject to the following risks: 

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository tinancial institution. the City will not be ahle to recover its deposits. Under state law, these 
deposits (or the resulting bank balances) mu.st be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged secunties plus the federal 
deposit insurance must at all times equal or exceed the amount on deposit with the fiscal bank. These 
securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is 
mutually acceptable to both parties. Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutoly 
requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being 
notified by the City that the fiscal agent hank has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. Further, 
Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1224 states that securities held by a third party shall be deemed to be held 
in the City's name. 



Page 59 

City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2023 

10. Cash and Investments continued 

Interest Rate Risk. This is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the tair 
value of an investment Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity 
is its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The City does not have a formal investment policy 
that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. However, as a means of offsetting exposure to interest rate risk, the City 
diversifies its investments by security type and institution 

Credir Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a deht type investment will not fulfill its 
obligation to the holder of the investment. U.S. government securities or obligations explicitly 
guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit nsk exposure. The City's 
investments comply with Louisiana Statutes 1L5A R.S. 33:2955). Under state law, the City may deposit 
funds with a fiscal agent organized under the laws of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, 
or the laws of the United States. The City may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, 
government-backed agency securities, or certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under 
Louisiana law and national banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal 
offices in Louisiana. 

Cash and investments are held separately by each of the City's funds At May 31, 2023, cash and 
investments totaled $36.320,074 (book balances). including $4.465 cash on hand. Bank account and 
investment balances at May 31, 2023, totaled $38,966,297, and of this amount $4,055,670 was secured 
by government securities. The remaininL,  amount was secured as follows: $693.733 with FDIC' 
insurance and $32,650,146 with pledged securities leaving an unsecured balance of $1,566,748. 

11. C-ompensation City Councilmen 

A detail of cornpensation paid to individual council members for the year ended May 31. 202.1 f011ows: 

Charles Harrington $ 8,882 
Dale A. Nielsen 8,882 
Rose Mary Elie 8,882 
Christopher Petite 8,882 
BettN Smith 11.282 

Total $46,814 

12. Fund Deticits 

balances at May 31, 2023: The following individual timds have deficits in unassigned fund 

Fund Deficit Amount 
Special Revenue Funds-

  

Events Center 71.238 
Stop Grant 8,186 
Cane River Green Market 27,984 
Knock-Knock Grant 20.983 
Rapides Foundation 31,688 
Sports Complex Construction 41.642 
Economic Development District-TIF A 43,489 
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12. Fund Deficits (continued) 

 

Capital Projects Funds-

 

Capital Improvements-Streets 1,243,442 
Pilgrim's Industnal Park 74,034 
Airport Maintenance 531.605 
Airport Hangar 78.666 
Community Water Enrichment 10,386 
Chaplain's Lake Water System 9.897 
LWCF — PARC Natchitoches 89,351 
Rue Beauport Riverfront 213.251 

Total $2.495,842 

 

Special ReNenue Fimds - These deficits will be funded by transfers from other fitnds in future years. 

Capital Projects Funds - These deficits are caused by ongoing construction and will be funded in the 
next fiscal year by grant revenues and by transters from other funds. 

In addition to deficit fund balances. the City has arious funds which have cash overdrafts. The cash 
deficits totaling $3,431,222 (a decrease of $1,542,053 from prior year) will be funded hy interfund 
transfers in future years. 

13.On-Behalf Payments 

Certain City employees of the City Police Department, City Fire Department and the City Marshal's 
Office receive supplemental pay from the State. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 24, the City 
has recorded revenues and expenditures for these payments in the General Fund. Revenues under this 
arrangement totaled $539,587 and the related expenditures are as follows: 

City Marshal's Office $ 14.10(► 
City Police Department '199.9'5 
City Fire Department 277,175 

Total $591.200 

14.Other Post Employment Benefits 

General In formation about the OPEB Platt 

Plan description - The City of Natchitoches (City) provides certain continuing health care and life 
insurance benefits for its retired employees. The City of Natchitoches's OPEB Plan (the OPEB Plan) 
is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered hy the C'ity. The authority to establish 
and or amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees rests with the City. No assets are 
accuniulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

Benefits Provided — Medical benetits are provided throueh a self-insured comprehensive medical plan 
and are made available to employees upon actual retirement. The employees are covered by a retirement 
system whose retirement eligibility t D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows. 25 years of service at 
any age: or, age 60 and 10 years ot service. There is the additional requirement for retiree medical 
benefits that the retiree have at least twenty years of service with the City of Natchitoches. 
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14. ( )ther Post Employrnent Benefits (continued) 

£mpinye.s covered bv bentfit terms — As of the measurement date May 31, 2023, the following 
employees were covered by the henetit terms. 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 
Inactive empkiyees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Actii e emploN ees 

Tota1 

Total OPEB Liability 

The City's total ()PEB liability is $9,529,266 as of the meausurement date May 31, 2023, the end of 
the fiscal year 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs - The total OPEB hahihtv in the May 31, 2023 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 
Salary increases Service MERS     

13 

25 

1 — 6.40% 
3 — 4 6.40% 
5 — 14 4.50% 
15 — 24 4.50% 
)5+ 4.50% 

3.16% annually (Beginning of Year to Determine ADC) 
3.741* annually (As of End of Year Measurement Date) 
Getzen Model 
Pub-2111 0 Table 

Discount rate 

Healthcare cost trend rates 
Mortality 

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation municipal hond index as 
of May 31. 2023, the end of the applicable measurement period. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the May 31. 2023 valuation were based on the results of ongoing 
evaluations of the assumptions from October 1, 2009 to May 31, 2023. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at May 31. 2022 56.152.883 

Changes for the year: 

 

Service cost 354,131 

Interest 201,652 

Difterences between expected and actual experience (1,618,034) 

Changes in assumptions 4.691.826 

Benetit payments and net transfers (253,192) 

Net changes 3.376,383 

Balance at May 31, 2023 S0.529,266 
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14. ()flier Post Employment Benefits (continued) 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB to changes in the discount ratc — The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-pomt lower (2.74%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.74%) 
than the current discount rate: 

1.0% Current 1.0% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 
(2.74%) (3.74%) (4.74%)  

'Fotal OPEB liabilitv Sl0,444,875 $9,529,266 $8,697,622 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates - The following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be 
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4.5%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (6.5%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

1.0% Current 1.0% 
Decrease Trend Increase 
(4.5%) (5.5%) (6.5%) 

Total OPEB liability S8,450,450 S9,5")9, -'66 S10,795,855 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to OPEB 

For the year ended May 31, 2023, the City recognized OPEB expense of $1,053,912. At May 31, 2023, 
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences beti‘een expected and actual experience S 368.257 S (1,468.452)  
Charwes in assumptions 4.534,044 (519,777) 
Total S 1.90?.3111 S (1,988.1,9) 

Arnounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
(=WEB will be recognized in ()PEB expense as follows. 

Years ending 

 

2024 $498,12) 
2025 498,129 
2026 498.219 
2027 498,177 
2028 446,336 

Thereafter 475.227 



Page 63 

City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Notes to Financial Statements 

May 31, 2023 

15. Pilarim's Pride Corporation 

The City. for the year ended May 31, 2006, authorized the issuance of revenue bonds, not to exceed 
$25,000,000, to provide financial assistance to Piloim's Pride, a private sector entity for the acquisition 
of land and construcnon of a feed mill. The bonds are secured by the property tinanced and cornmercial 
facilities built and are payable solely by the entity, Pilgrim's Pride Corporation. Upon repayment of 
the bonds, ownership of the property and facilities transfer to the private-sector entity served by the 
bond issuance Neither the City, the State, nor any political suhdivision thereof is obligated in any 
manner tim repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the 
accompanying financial statements. At May 31, 2008, the taxable revenue bonds, not to exceed 
$25,000.000 had been issued and bear an interest rate of 4°i.. The full amount of the principal 
$25,000.000 is due December 15, 2023. Therefore, the outstanding principal balance at May 31, 2023, 
is $25,000,000. 

16. American Rescue Plan Act 

Congress passed the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) which allowed governmental entities to tile 
for and receive funds related to a loss of revenues as a result of COVID. These entities could calculate 
the lost revenues based on formulas from the US Treasury or elect to receive a standard allowance 
calculated by the US Treasury. The City elected the standard allowance which will total funds of 
$6A72,136. The City received $3,238,701 in current year, hut has only expended $3,443,161. As a 
result, $3,028,975 is recorded as deferred revenue. 

17. Restatement of Fund Balance/Net Position 

As of May 31. 2022, governmental activities fund balance and net position were understated by 
$97,055. The overstatement was caused by accounts payable being overstated. The chanees to fund 
balance:net position are as follows: 

Fund Balance Net Position 

Balance at 5;31O1 S 21.1)43.334 $ 45,066,980 

Adjustment 97.055 97,055 

Restated Balance at 5!31!'' 5; 2{).946.279 $ 44,969,925 

18. Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated events through November 27, 2023, the date which the financial statements 
were available for issue. There were no iterns to be reported as subsequent ents. 
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Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended May 31, 2023 

 

Budgeted 
Amounts 

2023 Actual 

Variance-

 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

 

Originalinnal 
Revenues: 

   

Taxes S 6.534.025 S 6.535.197 S 1,172 
Licenses & Permits 872.200 1.199.635 327.435 
lntergovermental 978.480 1.181.995 203,515 
Charees for Services 247.800 101.696 (146.104) 
Fines & Forfeits 20.000 11.705 (8,205) 
Miscellaneous 

 

2b7.177 267.177 

Total Revenues S S.65 -1.505 S 9.'97.405 1/4, 644.900 

Expenditures 
Current-

    

General Government S 4.802.540 S 4,918.185 S (115,645) 
Pubic Safety 0.661.588 9.531.513 130.075 
Streets & Sanitation 1.486.921 1.503.817 (16,806) 
Economic Development 220.000 221.949 (1.940) 
Health & Welfare 280.000 

 

280,000 
Recreation & Culture 883.148 784.117 99.021 
Deht Service 25.000 26.873 (1.873) 

Total Expenditures S 17. 1s0.19" ti 16.9O.464 `, 372 733 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over Expenditures ti (ti.7n6.692) ti (7.(iS9.059) 1/4+ 1.017 033 

Other Financuig Sources (Uses): 

   

Operating Transfers In S I() 737 000 1/4, 8.101.948 S 2.534,052 
C)perating Transfers Out (S55 000) (1.317.300) (462.300) 
Sale of Assets 

 

11.932 11,932 

Total Other Financing 1/4, 9 8S' 000 1/4, 6.89' 5S0 1/4 2.083 084 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

and Other Sources over 
Expenditures and Other Uses S L175308 S (791.479) S 3,101.317 

Fund Balance - Beginnine of Year 3,873,354 3,873,354 

 

Fund Balance - End of Year S 5.048.662 S 3.081.875 ti 3.101.317 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches, Louisiana 
Major Fund 

American Rescue Plan Act 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-

 

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended May 31, 2023 

Budyeted Amounts 

    

Variance-

 

Favorable 

 

(?riginal Final 20 )? Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues: 

    

Intergovernmental S 3,233.434 S 3,233,434 S 3,130,569 S (102,865) 

Expenditures: 

    

Current-

     

General Government 

 

$ 1,020,000 $ 933,894 $ 86,106 
Public Safety 500,000 500,000 515,553 (25,553) 
Streets & Sanitation 

 

1,435,000 1,484,430 (49,430) 
Recreation & Culture 

 

135,000 186,692 (51,692) 

Total $ 500,000 $ 3,090,000 $ 3,130,569 $ (40,569) 

Excess Deficiency) of Revenues 
over Expenditures $ 2,733.434 $ 143,434 $ $ (62,296) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 

    

Fund Balance - End of Year S 2 733.-134 143.434 

  

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Luuisiana 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 

For the Year Ended May 31, 2023 

Contractually 

Required 
Contributions 

Contributions 

in Retation tu 

Contractually 

Required 

Contributions 

Contriubtion 

Deficiency 

(Excess) 

Employer's 

Covered 

Payroll 

Contributions as a 

Percentage of 

Covered Employee 

Payrol 

Fiscal 

Municipal Empkveest Retirement System 

2015 S 952.580 $ 952,580 $ $ 5,203,681 18.3% 
2016 S 1,05().139 $ 1,050,139 $ $ 5,3'0,471 19.7% 
2017 S 1,114,803 $ 1.114,803 $ $ 5,000,995 11.3% 

2018 S 1.277.497 $ 1.277,497 $ $ 5,183,740 24.6% 
2019 S 1,361.044 $ 1,361,044 $ $ 5,258,704 15.9° 
2010 S 1,464.641 $ 1,464.640 $ $ 5,307,733 77.6% 

2021 S 1,563,429 $ 1,563,429 $ $ 5,325,043 29 4% 
2022 S 1,560,615 $ 1.560,615 

 

$ 5,339,116 29.2% 
2023 S 1.656.119 $ 1.656,119 $ % 5,613,961 29.5% 

Municipul Police Empla)ves' Retirement System 

   

2015 S 616,246 $ 616,246 $ $ 2,128,064 29 0% 
2016 S 688.039 $ 688,039 $ % 2,288,592 30.1% 
2017 S 760.372 $ 760,372 $ $ 2,403,928 31.6% 
2018 S 776.220 $ 776.220 $ $ 2,511,282 30.9% 
2019 S 848,524 $ 848,524 $ $ 2,639,447 32 1% 
2010 S 839,539 $ 839,539 $ $ 2.584 ,691 3, 5% 

2021 S 856.512 $ 856,512 $ $ 2,545,110 33.7°.0 
2022 S 745.192 $ 745,192 $ $ 2,480,974 30.0% 
2023 S 716.569 $ 716,569 $ $ 2,302,289 31.1% 

Firefighters' Retirement System 

    

2015 S 537.080 $ 537,080 $ $ 1,984,426 27.1% 
2016 S 540.653 $ 540,653 $ $ 1.972,602 27.4% 
2017 S 506,380 $ 506,380 $ $ 1,995,627 1 5.4% 
2018 S 550,900 $ 550,900 

 

$ 2.084,942 26 4% 
2019 S 580.563 $ 580.563 $ $ 2.190.804 16.5% 
2010 S 603.670 $ 603,670 $ $ 2,182,891 77.7% 

2021 S 702.698 $ 702,698 $ $ 1,101,901 31.9% 
2022 S 745,860 $ 745,860 $ $ 2,217,449 33.6% 
2023 S 750.639 $ 750,639 $ $ 1,254,488 33.3% 

The schedule is intended to show informution for 10 years. Additional years will he &splayed us they become 
avuiliuhle. 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 



Paiie 68 

City of Natchitoches, Louisiana 
Schedule of Employes Share of Net Pension Liabihtv 

For the Year Ended May 31, 2023 

Employes 
Proportion of the 

Net Pension 
Liability (Asset)  

Empliiyer's 
Proportion cif the 

Net Pension 
Liability (Asset)  

Employer's 
Cox ered 

Employee 
Payroll 

Employer's 
Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) as 

a Percentag of 
Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net 
Pension as a 

Percentage of the 
Total Pension Fiscal 

Year* 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 

2015 3.09799% $ 7.950.809 
2016 3.►165?100 $ 10.950.507 
2017 2.96389% $ 12,148,126 
2018 7  73870% $ 11.457.141 
2019 3.03785% $ 12.578.749 
_'{1?I} 2.84720% $ 11,897,468 
2021 2.77876% $

s 
12

7
..0
45

1 
(
3
) .

. 
(
7
)
1
13

1 
10,1 7.68165% 

2023 2 76622% $ 11,488,759 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

2015 0.82564% S 5.165.265 
2016 O 80252% $ 6,286,9(16 
2017 0.82607% $ 7,742,566 
2018 0 81145% $ 7.084.284 
2019 0.85024% $ 7,187.956 
2020 0.85409% $ 7,756,577 
2021 0.84285% $ 7.789.871 
2022 0.83646% $ 4,458,789 
2023 0 77812% $ 7,953,737 

Firelighters' Retirement System 

2015 0.94139% $ 4.189.091 
2016 0 93739°o $ 5,059,199 
2017 0.87280% $ 5,708,921 
2018 0 85679% $ 4.910.985 
2019 0.87937% $ 5,057.929 
2020 0.90199% $ 5,648,168 
2021 0.88276% $ 6.118.929 
2022 0.87690% $ 3,107,597 
2023 O 85930% $ 6,059,154 

$ 5,203.681 162% 76.0% 
$ 5,320.472 705% 99 0% 
$ 5,000,995 243% 68 0% 

S 5,183.740 221% 6' 5% 
$ 5,258.704 7399'i) 63 9% 
$ 5,303,733 224% 64.7% 

$ 5,375.0 43 :16% 64 5% 
S 5,339.116 140% 77.8% 
$ 5,613,962 205'?•O 67 9% 

S 2,128.064 243% 76.0% 
$ 2,288,59" 275'?•O 99 0% 
$ 2,403,928 322% 68 0% 
S 2,511.282 282% 70 1% 
$ 2,639,447 271% 71 9% 
$ 2,584,691 300% 71.0% 
$ 2,545.110 306% 70 9% 
$ 2,480,974 180% 84 1% 
$ 2,302,289 345% 70 8% 

S 1,984.426 211% 76.0% 
$ 1,972,602 '56% 99 0% 
$ 1,995,627 286% 68 0% 
$ 2,084.942 236% 74 0% 
$ 2,190,804 231% 74 8% 
$ 2,182,891 '59% 74.0% 
$ 7,701,901 278% 72 6% 
$ 2.217,449 140% 86 8% 
$ 2,254,488 269% 74 7°o 

The schedule is intended to show inlOrmanon fbr 10 years. Additional years will he displayed as they became 
avaihahle. 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB and Related Ratios 

For the Year Ended May 31. 2023 

Total OPEB Liahilitv 
2021 2022 2023 

Service Cost $ 133.890 $ 143,929 $ 354.131 
Interest 157,503 142.723 201,65' 
Changes in Benefit Terms 

   

Differences between expected and actual experience (44.746) 313.192 (1.618.034) 
Changes of Assumptions (117,039) (679.346) 4.691,826 
Benefit Payments (165.092) (1(,5,587) (253.192) 

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (35.484) S (245,089) $ ',.376.383 

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 6.433,455 6.397.972 6.152,883 

Total OPEB - Ending 0.397.971 4, 6,15/ .s83 $ 9.519 166 

Coyered-employee Payroll S 9.664.0S1 S 10.050.645 S 9.319.515 

Net OPEB Liability as a percentage of 
covered emplo.ve payroll 66.20% 61.22% 102.25°n 

Notes to Schedule. 

   

Benefit Change,. • None None None 

Changes in Assumptions. 

   

Discount Rute• 2 26% 3 16% 3 740 0 
Mortality: RP-2000 RP-2000 Puh-2010 
Trend. 4 to 5.5% 4 5°,1 to 5.5^ -0 Getzen Model 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to 

Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer 
For the Year Ended May 31, 2023 

Agency Head: Ronnie Williams, Mayor 

Purpose Amount 

Salary S 99,612 
Benefits-Insurance 11,524 
Benefits-Retirement )8,936 
Cell phone 698 
Dues 5,130 
Per Diem 1.731 
Travel 11.795 
Total 5 159.526 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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First Six Month Second Six 
Period Ended Month Period 

11/30/21 Ended 5/31/22 

103.417 $ 149.796 

158,757 85,484 

174,769 149,796 
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City of Natchitoches 
Justice System Funding Schedule - Collecting/Disbursing Entity 
As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session 

May 31, 2023 

LLA Entity ID # (This is the ID number assigned to the entity by the Legislative Auditor for 
identification purposes and will be filled out by your auditor.) 

Cash Basis Presentation 

Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected (i.e. cash on hand) 

Add: Collections (Please enter zeros if'no activity within a certain collection iype) 
Civil Fees (including refundable amounts such as garnishments or advance deposits) 
Bond Fees 
Asset Forfeiture/Sale 
Pre-Trial Diversion Program Fees 
Criminal Court Costs/Fees 
Criminal Fines - Contempt 
Criminal Fines - Other 
Restitution 
Probation/Parole/Supervision Fees 
Service/Collection Fees (e.g. credit card fees, report fees, 3rd party service fees) 
Interest Earnings on Collected Balances 
Other (do not include collections that fit into more specific categories above) 

Subtotal Collections 

Less: Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits: (Must include one agency name and one 

Natchitoches City Marshal - Bond Fees 

Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 
Collection Fee for Collecting/Disbursing to Others Based on Percentage of Collection (enter zero if no 
activity to report here) 
Collection Fee for Collecting/Disbursing to Others Based on Fixed Amount (enter zero if no activity to 
report here) 
Amounts "Self-Disbursed" to Collecting Agency (must include a separate line for each collection 
type, as applicable) - Example: Criminal Fines - Other (To be reported as a separate line per 
collection type under this heading, multiple rows inay be needed) 

205,135 110,458 

205,135 110,458 

225.814 94.516 

Less: Disbursements to Individuals/3rd Party Collection or Processing Agencies (Please enter zeros if' 
Civil Fee Refunds 
Bond Fee Refunds 
Restitution Payments to Individuals (additional detail is not required) 
Other Disbursements to Individuals (additional detail is not required) 
Payments to 3rd Party Collection/Processing Agencies 

Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage 

Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not Disbursed/Retained (i.e. cash on hand) 

Ending Balance of "Partial Payments" Collected but not Disbursed (only applies if collecting 
agency does not disburse partial payments until fully collected) - This balance is included in the Ending 
Balance of Amounts Collected but not Disbursed/Retained above. 

Other Information: 

Ending Balance of Total Amounts Assessed but not yet Collected (i.e. receivable balance) 
Total Waivers During the Fiscal Period (i.e. non-cash reduction of receivable balances, such as time 
served or community service) 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches 
Justice System Funding Schedule - Receiving Entity 

As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session 
May 31, 2023 

Iden 
  
 ing Information   

LLA Entity ID # (This is the ID number assigned to the entity by the Legislative Auditor for 
identification purposes and will be filled out by your auditor.) 2189 

If legally separate court funds are required to be reported, a separate receiving schedule should be prepared for each fund. Exainples 

First Six Month Second Six 
Period Ended Month Period 

Cash Basis Presentation 11/30/21 Ended 5/31/22 

Receipts From: (Must include one agency name and one collection type - see belolv - on each line 

Natchitoches City Court - Civil Fees 
Subtotal Receipts 

        
  7,608   4,096                   
  7,608   4,096           

                 
Ending Balance of Amounts Assessed but Not Received (only applies to those agencies 
that assess on behalf of themselves, such as courts)                  

Collection Types to be used in the "Receipts From:" section above 
Civil Fees 
Bond Fees 
Asset Forfeiture/Sale 
Pre-Trial Diversion Program Fees 
Criminal Court Costs/Fees 
Criminal Fines - Contempt 
Criminal Fines - Other 
Restitution 
Probation/Parole/Supervision Fees 
Service/Collection Fees (e.g. credit card fees, report fees, 3rd party service fees) 
Interest Earnings on Collected Balances 
Other (do not include collections that fit into more specffic categories above) 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Yew Ended Mav 31, 2023 

   

Special Revenue Funds 

  

Event Center 
Opeiatious Hazard Tax STOP Grant Airport 

Employee 
Benefits 

Assets 

      

Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 

 

$ 1,256.979 $ $ 36.605 $ 1,315.771 
Revenue Receivables 

  

3.695 

 

6,511 1,515 
Due from Other Funds 

  

- 

 

- 

 

Prepaid Expenses 

    

16.709 

 

Total Assets $ 

 

$ 1,260.674 $ $ 59.825 $ 1,317.286 

Liabilities 

      

Cash Overdraft 

 

48.107 $ - $ 6,691 $ - $ 
Accounts Payable 

 

8.367 642 

 

8.316 

 

Accnied Expense 

   

1.495 

  

Deferred Revenue 

      

Due to Other Funds 

      

Accrued Paymll 

 

14.764 

  

14.054 

 

Total Liabilities 

 

71.238 $ 642 $ 8.186 $ 22 376 s 

Fund Balances 

      

Nonspendable $ 

 

$ - $ $ 16.709 $ 
Restricted 

  

1,160.101 - 

  

Coniniitted 

    

20,746 1,317,286 
Unassigiied (71.238) - (8 186) 

  

Total Fund Balances $ i71.23S1 $ 1,260 032 $ (8.186) $ 37.-155 $ 1.317,286 

Total Liabilrnes & 
Find Balances 

  

1.260.674 $ 59.825 $ 1.317.286 

Continued on next page 

See independenr auditoN' report and related note disclosures. 



Page 75 
City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Fluids 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Year Ended Mav 31. 2023 

Special Revenue Funds 

Worknian's NIulti-Drup 

Compensation Drug Recovery Task Force Pri:.oner Bond 911 Grant hit. 

$ 859.8l1 $ 47.931 $ 23 S0I $ 94,423 $ L.,s6 

4'.931 $ 23.S0I $ 94.423 $ 62.9S6 

- $ 
400 

400 $ 1.331 $ 

Assets 

Cash & Cash Dim% alents 
Revenue Receivables 

Due from Other Funds 
Prepaid Expemes 

Total Assets $ 859.811 $ 

- $ 
1.248 

1 24S $ 

Liabilities 

Cash Overdraft 
Accounts Payable 

Accrued Expense 
Deferred Revenue 

Due to Other Funds 
Accrued Par oll 

Tutal Liabilities 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable 

Resta icted 
Conimitted 

Iiiiassigned 

858.563 

   

- $ - $ 
23.801 

ri ?.‘446 

          
Total Fund Balances 85S 563 $ 47 531 $ 23 S01 $ 93 (02 $ 9S6 

Total Liabilities & 
Fund Balances 859,S II 4 7.931 $ 23.801 $ 94.423 $ 62.9So 

Continued on next pape 

See independenr auditoN' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Yew Ended Mav 31, 2023 

  

S ecial Revenue Funds 

  

Aninia1 Sheller 
Liabihry 

Insurance 
Main Street 

Promot ions 

Cane River 

Green Maiket 

Sales Tax 
Rededication 

Assets 

     

Cash & Cash Blur% alents $ "5 a5S $ .392.400 $ 94 420 $ 600 $ 2,794.429 
Revenue Receivables 

    

407.31 5 

Due from Other Funds 

     

Prepaid Expemes 

   

38 

 

Total Assets 75.458 $ 392.400 $ 94.420 $ 638 $ 3.201.754 

Liabilities 

     

Cash Overdraft $ $ - $ - $ 23.798 $ - 

Accounts Payable 

 

5.613 60 2.211 79.897 

Accrued Expense 

   

- - 

Deferred Revenue 

     

Due to Other Funds 

   

- 

 

Accrued Par 'Al 

   

7,575 

 

Total Liabilities $ $ 5.613 $ 60 $ 28.584 $ "9 897 

Fund Balances 

     

Nonspendable $ $ $ $ .;8 $ 

Resta acted - - 

  

3,121.857 
Committed 75.458 386.787 94.360 

  

litiassigned - - 

 

(27.9f44) 

 

Total Fund Balances $ 75 -15S $ 3S6 7S7 $ 94 3()() $ (27 946) $ 3,121 S57 

Total Liabilities & 
Fund Balances $ 75,45S $ 302,400 $ , i-1,-120 $ 638 $ 3.201,754 

Continued on next pape 

See independenr auditoN' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Yew Ended Mav 31. 2023 

  

Special Revenue Funds 

  

911-Police 
Grant 

NW Law 
Enforceinent 

Grant 
Knock Knock 

Grant 

Econouuc 
Development 

Dastrict CESF State 
Assets 

     

Cash & Cash Dim% alents $ 31.775 $ 2.294 $ $ 271.379 $ 5 90S 
Revenue Receivables 

     

Due from Other Funds 

     

Prepaid Expemes 

Total Assets 

     

4 31.775 $ 2.204 $ $ 271.379 

 

Liabilities 

     

Cash Overdraft 

  

20.1189 $ 

 

Accounts Payable 

     

Accrued Expense 

     

Deferred Revenue 

     

Due to Other Funds 

     

Accrued Parúll 

  

894 

  

Tutal Liabilaties 

  

1 0 983 $ 

 

Fund Balances 

     

Nonspendable $ $ $ $ 'i, 
Resta acted - - 

 

- 5 90S 
Committed 31.775 2.294 

 

271.3 79

 

- 

Iiiiassigned - - 120.983) - - 
Total Fund Balances $ 31 775 $ 2 294 $ (20 (W3) $ 271 379 $ 5.908 

Total Liabilrtres & 
Fund Balances $ 31,775 $ 2.294 $ $ 271,379 $ 5,908 

Continued on next pape 

See independenr auditoN' repoli and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Yew Ended Mav 31. 2023 

Assets 

 

Special Revenue Funds 

  

Ciarba7e Service Sales Tax Police 
Miss Merry 
Christmas 

Keep Louisiana 
Beautiful 

LAC: Tiaffic 
Enkrcement 

      

Cash & Cash Dim% alents $ 425.785 $ 1,788.583 $ E 618 $ 500 $ 1.743 
Revenue Receivables 429.242 407.315 

    

Due from Other Funds 

      

Prepaid Expemes 

 

2,519 

    

Total Assets $ 855.027 $ 2,198.427 $ 13.618 $ :)00 $ 1.743 

Liabilities 

      

Cash Overdraft $ - $ $ $ - $ - 
Accounts Payable 176.754 - 

    

Accrued Expense - 66.788 

  

- - 
Defened Revenue 

      

Due to Other Funds 

      

Accrued Par oll 

Tutal Liabilities 

      

$ l'6 754 $ 66 788 $ $ - $ - 

Fund Balances 

      

Nonspenclable $ $ 2.519 $ $ 

 

$ 
Resta acted - 2,129.12o 

  

- - 
Committed 678.'73 - 13.618 

 

s.,00 1.743 
Ihiassigned - - 

  

- - 

Total Fund Balances $ 678.273 $ 2,131.639 $ 13 OlS $ 500 $ 1 743 

Total Liabilrttes & 
Fund Balances $ 855.027 $ 2.108.427 $ 13.618 $ 500 $ 1.7-13 

Continued on next pape 

See independenr auditoN' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Yew Ended Mav 31. 2023 

  

Special Revenue Funds 

  

Comimmitv 
Prop a au 

BJA Byrne Jag - 
Police & NPSO 

NHDDC 
Projects 

201 5 Revenue 
Note Reserve 

Rapides 
Foundation 

Assets 

     

Cash & Cash Dim% alents Ti 15.354 $ 16 104 $ 4 25S $ 92 900 $ 
Revenue Receivables 

     

Due from Other Funds 

     

Prepaid Expemes 

     

Total Assets 15.354 $ 16.104 $ 4.258 1 02.500 

 

Liabilities 

     

Cash Overdraft $ - $ - $ $ 21.S79 $ ?!).S7b 
Accounts Payable 44 

   

681 
Accrued Expense 

 

- 

  

- 
Deferred Revenue 

     

Due to Other Funds 

   

- - 
Accrued Par oll 

   

- 1.131 

Total Liabilities $ 44 $ $ $ 21 879 $ 31 6SS 

Fund Balances 

     

Nonspendable $ 

 

$ - $ $ $ 
Resta acted 

 

16.104 

   

Conimitted 15.310 

 

4.258 70.621 

 

Iiiiassigned - - 

 

- 131.62, S) 

Total Fund Balances $ 15 310 $ 16 104 $ 4 253 $ 70 621 $ 131.68; 

Total Liabilities & 
Fund Balances 15.354 $ lo.104 $ 4.258 $ 92.500 $ 

Continued on next pape 

See independenr auditoN' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Year Ended Mav 31. 2023 

   

Special Revenue Funds 

  

ETutable 
Sharing 
Program 

Spoi rs Complex Spoi rs Complex 
Construction Sponsorship 

Sales Tax - 
Divrict 

Sales Tax - 
Dishict C' 

Assets 

      

Cash & Cash Eipmalents $ 22.783 $ 

 

$ 545 104 $ 66.054 $ 60.881 
Revenue Receivables 

   

8.500 9.124 87.491 
Due from Other Funds 

    

1.227 

 

Prepaid Expemes 

Total Assets 

      

22.783 $ 

 

$ 553.604 $ 76.405 $ 148.373 

Liabilities 

      

Cash Overdraft a a 38.270 $ 

  

Accounts Payable 

  

950 

   

Accrued Expense 

      

Deferred Revenue 

      

Due to Other Funds 

     

19.930 
Accrued Par (Al 

  

2,422 

   

Tutal Liabilities b b 41.642 $ Ti Ti 19.930 

Fimd Balances 

      

Nonspendable $ $ 

 

$ $ $ 
Resta icted - 

   

- - 
Conimirted 7,.71;3 

 

- 553.604 76.405 128.443 
Iiiiassigned - 

 

a41.642) 

 

- 

 

Total Fund Balances $ 22 783 $ (41 642) $ ss .  604 $ 76 405 $ 128 443 

Total Liabilrtres & 
Fund Balances $ 22.783 $ $ 553.604 $ 7(O05 $ 148.373 

Continued on next pape 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Year Ended Mav 31. 2023 

  

Special Revenue Funds 

  

Sales Tax - 
District D 

Sales Tax - 
District E 

Econouuc 
Development 

District - TIF A 

Econouuc 
Development 

District - TIF C 
CSEF - Federal 

Fluids 
Assets 

     

Cash & Cash Eipmalents $ - $ 9.475 $ - $ 730,929 $ 13 641 
Revenue Receivables 3.545 14.339 10.198 61.329 

 

Due from Other Funds 

 

- 3.189 32.073 

 

Prepaid Expemes 

   

- 

 

Total Assets $ 3.545 $ 23.814 $ 13.387 $ 824.331 $ 13.641 

Liabilities 

     

Cash Overdraft a 69 $ a 56.S76 $ 

 

Accounts Payable 

     

Accrued Expense 

     

Deferred Revenue 

     

Due to Other Funds 

     

Accrued Par (Al 

Tutal Liabilities 

     

Ti 69 $ 56 876 $ 

 

Fund Balances 

     

Nonspendable $ $ $ $ $ 
Resta acted - - 

 

- 13 64 1 
Committed 3.4 76 23.814 

 

824.331 

 

Iiiiassigned - - i 43.4891 

 

- 

Total Fund Balances $ 3 476 $ 23 SI-1 $ (43 489) $ 824.331 $ 13.641 

Total Liabilrtres & 
Fund Balances $ 3.545 $ 23.814 $ 13.387 $ 824,331 $ 13,641 

Continued on next pape 

See independenr auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Yew Ended Mav 31. 2023 

 

Special Reyentie 

Funds Capital Projects Funds 

  

Capra] Water Pilgrim's 

 

Hobby Lobby lutl,iuvruieuts Treatment Plan( industrial Park 
A.,,sets 

   

Cash & Cash Equivalents t.S00 S 1.023.089 S 1.418.172 5 
Revenue Receivables 

   

Due from Othet Funds 

   

Pt epaid Expenses 

  

117.179 

Toral Assets 1.50i 1.023,089 S 1.535,351 S 

Liabilities 

   

Cash Oveadnifl 

 

- S S 24.034 
Accounts Pavable 

 

260 

 

Accrued Expense 

  

50_542 50.000 
Deferred Revenue 

   

Due to Other Funds 

   

Accrued Payroll 

 

2.918 

 

Total Ltabalities 

 

3.178 S 50 542 ti 74.034 

Fund Balances 

   

Nonspendable 

  

S 117,179 S 

Restncted 

   

Conunitted 1.500 1.019.911 1.367.630 

Unassigned 

  

(74 (a34) 

Total Fund Balances $ L500 S 1 019.911 S 1 414.309 N (744)34) 

Total Laabdities & 
Fund Balances 1.500 5 1.023.0'19 S 1.535.351 S 

Continued on next page 

See independenr auditoN' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Yew Ended Mav 31. 2023 

   

Capital Projects Funds 

  

Anport Hancar 

Ailport 

Maintenance Parking Lot LCDBG 

Community 
Water 

Einiclunent 
Assets 

      

Cash & Cash Blur% alents $ 

 

Ti b 40.237 $ 647.140 $ 
Revenue Receivables 

    

49.590 

 

Due from Other Funds 

      

Prepaid Expemes 

Total Assets 

         

40.237 $ 0)6.730 $ 

Liabilities 

      

Cash Overdraft 

 

78.666 $ 497.S52 $ $ 323.S46 $ 10 386 
Accounts Payable 

  

33.753 

 

345.-110 

 

Accrued Expense 

      

Deferred Revenue 

      

Due to Other Funds 

      

Accrued Par oll 

Total Liabilities 

      

Ti 78.666 $ 531 605 $ $ 669.256 $ 10.386 

Fimd Balances 

      

Nonspendable $ 

 

$ $ $ - $ 
Resta acted 

 

- 

  

27.474 

 

Coniniitted 

  

- 40.237 

  

Iiiiassigned 

 

i 7:7(.666) (531.605) 

 

- i10.3ts6) 

Total Fund Balances $ 178 (566) S (531.605) $ 40 237 $ 2.7 474 $ (10 3Sót 

Total Liabilities & 
Fund Balances $ 40.237 $ (19o.730 $ 

Continued on next pape 

See independenr auditoN' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchiloches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Yew Ended Mav 31, 2023 

Assets 

 

Capital Projects Funds 

 

Chaplain's Lake 
Chateau St. 

Deans Fund 
LWCF- PARC 
Natchitoches 

Rue Beauport 
Riverfront 

Project 

Eagle Building 

Project 

      

Cash & Cash Dim% alents $ - $ 1a) 172 $ 

 

$ - $ 508.1)87 
Revenue Receivables 

     

20.703 

Due from CH her Funds - - 

   

- 
Prepaid Expemes 12,275 - 

   

135 

Total Assets $ 12.275 $ 10.172 $ 

 

$ $ 528.925 

Liabilities 

      

Cash Overdraft 

   

89.351 $ 213 251 $ 
Accounts Payable 

      

Accrued Expense 22.172 

    

248 
Deferred Revenue 

      

Due to Other Funds 

      

Accrued Par MI 

Tutal Liabilities 

      

Ti 22.172 $ 

 

89 351 $ 2 l 3 251 $ 301 

Fimd Balances 

      

Nonspendable $ $ $ 

 

* i, 135 

Resta acted 

    

- 528.489 
Coniniitted - 10.172 

 

- 

  

Iiiiassigned (9,S971 - 

 

i So 3 sl) (213.251 i 

 

Total Fund Balances $ (9.S97) $ 10.172 $ (2%9 351 ) $ (213 251 a $ 528.624 

Total Liabilities & 
Fund Balances 12.275 $ 10.172 $ 

  

$ 528.925 

Continued on next pape 

See independenr auditoN' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Yew Ended Mav 31. 2023 

  

Debt Service Funds 

    

t:,eneral 

  

Sales Tax Obligation Sinking Ftiud Total 

Assets 

    

Cash & Cash Equivalents S 301.333 S 1.266.891 $ 1 97.170 S 16.688.075 
Revenue Receivables 

   

1.520.432 

Due froiu Othei Funds 

   

36.489 

epaid Expenses 

   

148.855 

Toral Assets $ 3i t1.333 S 1.266.8(12 S 297.170 S 18.393,851 

L iabi lit ies 

     

Cash Ovei fl 

    

S' 1.483.041 
Accounts Payable 

    

665,990 

Accmed Expense 

    

191.2.15 
Deferred Revenue 

     

Due to Other Funds 

    

19.930 
Acemed Payroll 

    

38.758 

Total Liabi t ies 

    

2 398.964 

Fund Balances 

     

Nonspendable $ - S 

 

$ [16,580 

Restncted 

 

301.333 - 

 

7.520.851 
Conunitted 

  

1.'66.89' 297.1 70 9.5)49.856 

Unassigned 

 

- - 

 

(1.252.400) 

Total Ffuld Balances s,' 301.331 S 1.266.S92 S 297.170 S 15 994.887 

Total Liabilities & 
Fund Balances S 301.333 S 1.266.892 S 297.170 $ 18.393.851 

See independenr auditoN' report and related note disclosures. 



Page 86 
City of Natchitoches, Louisiana 

Nonmajca Governmental Ftuids 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 51, 2023 

  

Special Revenue Funds 

  

Event Center 

Operations Hazard Tax SI(.)P Grant Aitpotr 

Employee 

Benefit, 

Revenues 

     

Taxes S S 1.467.316 S 

  

Intergovernmental 

     

Charges fur Services 219 075 

  

527.69 l 

 

Fines & Forfeits 

     

MIscellaneous 

   

97.177 245 

Tutal Reventies s 219 ri ,; 1,467.316 $ S 624.8(,8 $ 245 

Expenditures 

     

Current-

      

General Governmetit 

  

- 5 $ 454.861 

Pubic Safety 

 

3-1.fiso S.18r, 

  

Streets & Sanitation 

     

Water, Sewer & 

     

Economic Development 465.9411 

  

683.437 

 

Recreatu & Culture 

     

Health & Welfaie 

     

Deht Service 

 

144,875 

   

Total Expenditures S 465.940 S 19S,967 $ S.186 S 683.437 S 454.861 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expenditures 5 (246.865) $ 1.268.349 $ (8.186) S (58.569) S 054.616) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

     

huuralrce Proceeds S S $ S S 

Debt Proceeds 

   

- 

 

Sale ot Assets 

   

41.003 

 

Transfer hi '155.0(tri 

  

51.375 900.0(l0 

Transfei Out 

 

(1.014.000) 

   

Total Other Finitheing S 255,000 S (1,014.000) $ S 92,375 S 900,000 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 

     

Other S011iees over Expendinues 

and Othei Uses S 8.135 c 254.349 S (8.186) S 33 X0') 5 -145.384 

Fund Balances - Beginning of Years (7'i 3'3) 1 (Inc (4;1 

 

3.o46 871.90' 

Fund Balance% - End ot Yea' S (71,235) S 1,260.032 $ (8,18(c) S 37.455 S 1,317.286 

'Restated See Note 17 

   

Contniued on next page 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 

Nonmajca Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. anti Changes 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 51, 2023 

Special Revenue Funds 

Workman's 

ouipeusatiou Drug Rekvvery Task Foice Priqmei Bond 911 Citant Fue  

Revenues: 

Taxes S S - S 

inteigi isemniental lii.762 

C barges for Services - - 

Fnies & Foifeits - - - 40.642 

Miscellaneotts 424.516 12.000 2.047 - l ti(1 

Total Reveuues S 424.516 S 12.000 S 20.S09 S 40.642 S 150 

£xpenditurec 

Current-

 

Cieueral Ciovernment S 255.093 S - 5 - S - S 

Pubic Safety 29.05' I 0.254 19.170 2.907 

Streets & Sanitation 

Water, Sewer & Utilities 

Economic Developnient 

Recreation & Culture 

Health & Welfare 

Debt Service 

Total Expenditines S '5i,093 S 20.052 S 10.254 S 10.170 S ≥.)07 

Excess (Deficiency) Revenues 

over Expenditures S 169.423 S 1,17.952) S 10.555 S 21.472 S (2 7271 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

insurance Proceeds 

Deht Pioceeds 

Sale of Assets 

Transfer hi 300.000 

Transfer Out (118.348) 

Total Other Financing ts 181.652 S  

Excess (Deficiency) ot Revenues and 

Other Sources tiser Expenditiues 

and Other 1.1SeS 351.075 S (17.952) S 

Fund Balances - Beginning of Yea' 507.488 65.483 

10.555 S 21.472 S (2 727) 

71.620 65.713 13.246 

Fund Balances - End of Year ti S5S.563 S 7,s3l 

*Restated See Note 17.  

23,:301 S 93.092 S 62.0)36 

Continued ou next page. 

See independent auditor!: report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 

Nonmajoi Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. anti Chanties 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 31, 2023 

  

Special Revenue Funds 

  

Annual Shelter 

Liahtliri 

In.mance 

Mani Sheet 

Plomotion, 

Cane Rivet 

Green Market 

Sale,. Tax 

Rededication 
Revenues 

     

Taxes 

   

- $ 2.553.1'6 
Intergovernmental 

   

5,00u 

 

Charges fur Services 14.1 I -1 

    

Fines & Forfeits 

     

Miscellaneous 

 

1.444 1  4O 15.04-1 

 

Total Revenues 14.41-1 S I 9-1-1 1.400 c 20 044 S 2.553.126 

Expenditures 

     

Current-

      

General Governmeilt - 1591.599 S 

  

Pubic Safety 19.1,14 

    

Streets & Sanitation 

     

Water, Sewer & 

    

438.732 

Economic Development 

   

88.665 

 

Recreant & Culture 

  

3,361 

  

Health & welfaie 

     

Deht Service 

Total Expenditures 

     

S 19,144 S 891.594 S 3,361 S .66.5 5 43S.732 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expenditures 5 (4.730) $ (hhq.655, S 39 5 (68.621) 2 114.394 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

     

huuralrce Proceeds S S S S $ 
Debt Proceeds 

     

Sale ot Assets 

     

Transfer hi - h4(1 .000 

 

25.500 - 
Transfei Out 

 

- 

  

t2."07.39 l 1 

Total Other Financing \ S 84g.000 S S 25.500 S r.2.7O.391; 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 

     

Other Sources over Expenditures 

and Othei Uses s (4 730) s ( 40.65S ) S 39 S (43.121) 4, ti92.99"'h 

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year* /su HS 427 442 94 321 15 1 - 5 3 -14.554 

Fluid Balance% - End ot Yea' S 75,455 S 386,787 S 94,360 S 27,9461 $ 3,12 I.S57 

'Restated See Note 17 

   

Continued on next page. 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisirum 

Nonmajca Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. anti Changes 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 51, 2025 

Special Revenue Funds 

NW Law Economic 
911-Police Enforcement Km szk Knock Deveit Talent 

Giant Giant Giant Distnct CESF State  

Revenue% 

Taxes S S - $ - $ $ 
huerFovrrnmeutal 6,474 1 L000 10,361 

Charges for Services - - - 
Fines & Forfeits 

Miscellaneous - 142.430 -  

Total Revenues c 10.361 $ 0 474 S 142.430 'I, ll.1100 

Expenditures: 
Cnrrent-

 

General Government 
Pubic Safety 

Streets & Sanitation 
Water. Sewer & 

Economic Develumnent 
Recreatit u & Cuhure 

Health & Welfare 
Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Insurance Proceeds 

Debt Proceeds 
Sale of Assets 

Transfei In 
Transfer Out 

Total Other Financing  

- $ 
11,128 9,134 

S 11,128 S 9,134 $  

S (767) $ (2.660) $ 142 430 R 1E000  

5 

100.0on 

(200.00n) 

 $ (100,00w ¶ 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 
Other St airces over Expenditures 

and Othei Uses (767) S (2.66n) g 42.430 ¶ 1 1,not) 

Fund Balances - Beginning ot Year* 31 --S 3 061 (18 323) 228 949 (i.n9^) 

Fund Balances - End of Year S 51.775 S 2,294 S (20,9831 $ 271,379 $ 5,908 

*Restated See Note 17 C'ontuuted on next paw. 

See independent auditor!: report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 

Nonmajca Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 31, 2023 

Revenues: 

 

Special Revenue Funds 

Garbage Servwe Sales Tax Police 

Miss Merry 

Christmas 

Keep Louisiana LAC Traffic 

Beautiful Enforcement 

    

Taxes S S 2 553.126 S 

 

Intel it..sernmental 

    

Charges for Services 2.086.102 

   

Ewes & fens 

    

Miscellaneous 

 

37.433 2.71 5 

 

Total Revenues S 2.086.102 S 2.590.559 S 2.71-5 S 

£xpenJiturec 

    

Current-

     

Cieueral Government 5 x - 

  

Pubic Safety 

 

618.019 

  

Streets & Sanitation 1 .771.03' 

   

Water, Sewer & Utilities 

    

Economic Developnient 

    

Recreation & Culture 

  

12.684 

 

Health & Welfare 

    

Debt Service 

Totid Expenditines 

    

S 2,271.032 S 618.019 S 12.684 S 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expenditures S 184.93W S l 972.540 S (9.969) S 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

    

insurance Proceeds S N S S S 

Debt Pioceeds - - 

  

Sale of Assets 

 

1.785 - 

 

Transfer In 

  

12.300 

 

Transfer Out 

 

(1.702.0001 - 

 

Total Other Financing ts S (1 .700.215) S 12.300 S S 

Excess (Deficiency) ot Revemtes and 

    

Other Sources oiser Expenditiues 

and Other Use. 1/4, (184.93u) S 272.325 2.331 S 

Fluid Balances - Begunuug of Yeat' 863.'03 l 859.314 11.287 5404 1.743 

Fund Balances - End of Year 678.273 S 2,131.639 s 13.618 S 500 S 1.743 

*Restated See Note 17. 

   

Continued ou next page. 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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Cily of Natchitoches. Louisiana 

Nonmajca Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. aml Changes 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May I. 2023 

  

Special Revenue Funds 

  

Conuniunty 

Plograin 

BLA Byrne Jag - 

Police & NPSO 

NFIDDC 

Plotech 

2015 Re‘ Niue 

Note Re:A.1w 

Rapide,, 

Foundation 

Revenues: 

     

Taxes 

lnteitt,ivernmental 

 

33.588 

   

C barges for Services 

     

Eines & Foifeits 

     

Miscellaneous 

     

Total Reveuues 

     

£xpenditurec 

     

Current-

      

Cieueral Ciovernment 

 

- 

   

Pubic Safety 

 

I - . I (,'.) 

   

Streets & Sanitation 

     

Water, Sewer & Utilities 

     

Economic Developnient 1.'95 

    

Recreation & Culture 

    

18.056 

Health & Welfare 

     

Debt Service 

   

186.405 

 

Total Expendinues 5 1,295 S 17,469 S S I S6.405 S 28.056 

Excess (Deficiency) , Revenues 

over Expenditures 5 (1.295) S 16.119 $ S t186.405) S (28.056) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

     

Insurance Proceetls 

     

Debt Pioceeds 

     

Sale of Assets 

     

Transfer hi 

   

245.00(t 

 

Transfer Out 

     

Totid Other Financing 

   

S 245.000 s 

Excess (Deficiency) ot Revemies and 

     

Other Sources liver Expenditiues 

and Other Use!. 1/4, i 1 .2')51 5 16.119 S S 58.595 c (28.056) 

Fund Balances - Begunung of Yeai' 16.f.)05 (15) 4.:25S 1^.(126 (3.632.1 

Fund Balances - End of Year 1 .5.310 S 16.104 S 4.258 S 70.621 S (31,688) 

*Restated See Note 17. 

   

Continued ou next paw. 

See independent auditor!: report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 

Nonmajca Governmental Funds 

Conitatung Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 51, 2025 

  

Special Revenue Funds 

  

Equitable 

Sh,uinc 

Piograur 

Sports Complex Sports Complex 

Constructlial Sponsorship 

Sale. Tax - 

A 

Sales Tax 

District C 

Revenues: 

     

Taxes 

 

S S - S 65.-120 S 425.94S 

inter itosernmental 

 

- 33.000 

 

- 

C barges for Services 

 

26.900 32.100 

  

Fmes & Ft.n feits 

     

Miscellaneous _ 

 

-13.212 

 

- 

Total Reveuues 

 

26.900 S 108.312 S 65.420 S 425.94S 

£xpenditurec 

     

Current-

      

Cieueral Ciovernment 

     

Pubic Safety 

     

Streets & Sanitation 

     

Water, Sewer & 

     

Economic Developnient 

    

166.222 

Recreation & Culture 

 

334.781 

   

Health & Welfare 

     

Debt Service 

Total Expenditines 

     

S S 334.781 S S S 166.222 

Excess (Deficiency) , Revenues 

over Expenditures $ S (307.88l) S 108.312 S 65.420 S 259.726 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

     

insurance Proceetls s. s S S S 

Deht Pioceeds 

     

Sale of Assets 

     

Transfer In 

 

231.000 

 

177.417 

 

Transfer Out 

   

09.000) ( i69.417) 

Total Other Financing ti ti 231.000 s S l3r4.417 S (369.-117) 

Excess (Deficiency) 01 Revenues and 

Other Sources liser Expenditiues 

    

and Other Use. 

 

S (76.8t11) S 108.312 $ 2111.S-37 5 (109.6.)l) 

Fluid Balances - Beginning of Year "ThS 35.239 

 

(127.432) 238.134 

Fund Balances - End of Year 22.783 S 141.6421 S 553.604 S .76.405 ti 128.443 

*Restated See Note I 7. 

   

Continued ou next paw. 

See independent auditor!: report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Nonmajoi Governmental Funds 

('ombining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. anti Changes 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 51. 2023 

Special Revenue Funds 
Economic Economic 

Sales Tax - Sales Tax - Develoinnent Development CSEF - Federal 
Disn id I) DistriO E DistriO - TIF A Distnct - TIF ( Funtis 

Revenues: 
Taxes S 41.176 S 39.759 5 67.277 S 245.599 S 
Intel it, isernniental 
C barges for Services 
Ewes & Foifeits 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues S 41.176 S 39.759 S 6 7.277 s 245.5.'9 S 

£.\]lenJitureS 
('urrent-

 

General Government 
Pubic Safety 
Streets & Sanitation 
Water, Sewer & Utilities 
Economic Developnient 43.390 1 5.94 9.500 
Recreation & Culture 
Health & Welfare 
Debt Service 

Total Expenditines 5 43,390 S 15.945 S 5 9.500 S 

Excess (Deficiency) 4-  Revenues 
over Expenditures S 12.2 l 4) S 23.814 S 67.277 S 236.0'49 S 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Insurance Proceeds 
Deht Pioceeds 
Sale of Assets 
Transfer hi 
Transfer Out (45.000) 

Totid Other Financing   S (45,00(t) S  

Excess (Deficiency) ot Revenues and 
Other Sources tiser Expenditiues 
and Other 1.1SeS (2.214) S 23.514 S 22.277 S 236O)9 S 

Fund Balances - Beginning of Yeat' 5.0',0 t65.7661 585.'37 13.041 

Fund Balances - End of Year ti 3.4 76 S 23.814 ti (-13.489)  S S24.331 S 13.6.11 

*Restated See Note 17. Continued ou next page. 

See nick-pendent auditor!: report and related note disclosures. 



Page 94 
City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 

Nonmajoi Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 31, 2023 

Special Revenue 

Fund  Capital Projects Fund..    

C *aid Water 

Hobby Lobll built einent, Treatment Mint Lt&utual Park  

Rnenues: 

Taxes •_, .-24 126 S 
Intergarvernmental 

C'harges for Services 

Fines & qieits 

Miscellaneous 37R 

Iotal Reveilues 524 126 c 178 •!.. 

Expemhtnres: 

Current-

 

General Government 

Publ. Safety 

Streets & Sanitatain 

Water. Sewer & tJnlities 820,212 

Ecvuvtwc Developmeiit 

Reeleation & Cultiue 

Health & Welfare 

Debt Service 210.000  

Total Expendittue% S S 1,030.212 S 

Excess tDeficieney1 of Revenues 

over Expenditaires S S t 506.086 $ 378  

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Insurance Pioceeds 

Deht Proceeds 512.500 

Side of Assets 

Transfer In 102.000 
Tiansfer ()tit 

Total Other Financing S S 614,500 S  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 

Other Sources over Expenditures 

and Other Uses 108.414 S 

Fund Balances - Beginning of year* 1.500 911 497 1,484.431 (74 034) 

Fund Balances - End of Year $ 1,500 S 1.019.9 l l S 1.484.809 S (74.034) 

'Restated See Note 17. Continued on next page. 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 

Nonmajoi Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. anti Changes ln Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 51, 2023 

Capital Projects Funds 

Community 

Alup,94 Water 

Airprtit Hath2.ar NIamtenance Parking Lot LCDBO Etuicluueut 

Revenues 

Taxes It - 1 - S $ - li 

Intergt4ernmental I .01t),94o 1.404,825 9.851 

Charges for Services - - 

Fines & Ft irfeits 

Miscellaneotis 8.855 43.659  

Total Revenues i 8.S55 It 1.01,).94n s 43 659 $ 1.404.525 $ 9 S5 1 

Expenditures: 

Current-

 

General Government It 

Pubic Safety 

Streets & Sanitation 

Water, Sewer & Utilities 1.538,830 

Econonnc Development 1.304.868 

Recieation & Cultine 

Health & Welfare 

Debt Senice 

TI gal Expendittues   $ 1.304,86S S S 1.538,830  S  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expenditures S 8.855 S (284 928) $ 43.659 $ (134 0(,5) $ 9.S5 l  

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Insurance Pioceeds 

Debt Ploceeds 

Sale of Assets 

TDIllsfer In ', 75,00n 

Transfer Out 

ital Other Fill3nelltg 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 

Other Sources over Expenditures 

    

S 275,000 $ 

     

and Other Uses t 8.855 1, (284 928) S 43.659 t I4u 995 $ ».).“) 

Fund Balances - BegiunIng of Year* (87.521't 

 

t 246 r.-  7) (3 422) ‘ 113 521) (20 237) 

Fund Balances - End of Year $ 178.666 % (531,605) S 40,237 $ 27,474 $ kln,3≥s() 

* Restated See Note 17. 

    

Continued on next page. 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 

Nonmajoi Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. anti Changes 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 51, 2023 

Revenues: 

 

Capital Pnlects Funds 

 

Chaplain's Lae 

Chateau St 

Denr, Fund 

LWCF- PARC 

NatChitoche. 

Rue Braiiport 
Rwerfrtmt 

Prc9ect 

Eagle Building 

Pri 1rd 

     

Taxes ti 5 

 

ti - s 

 

Intel isenmiental 

  

187.600 

  

C hinges for Services 

     

Ewes & F‘n feits 

     

Miscellaneous 

 

29 

  

I 14.224 

Total Reveuues S 5 29 S 187.600 .1; S 114.224 

£xpenJiturec 

     

Current-

      

General Government 

     

Pubic Safety 

     

Streets & Sanitation 

     

Water, Sewer & Utilities 

     

Economic Developnient 

    

6n3.876 
Recreation & Culture 

     

Health & Welfare 

     

Debt Service 

    

87.000 

Total Expendinues 

    

S 640.876 

Excess (Deficiency) Revenues 

over Expenditures S S 29 $ 187.600 s S (5- 0.652) 

Other Financing Stances (Uses): 

     

insurance Proceeds 

     

Debt Pioceeds 

    

2.nno.ouo 
Sale of Assets 

     

Transfer In 

     

Transfer Out 

Total Other Financing 

         

S 2.000.000 

Excess (Deficiency) ot Reveintes and 

Other Sources fixer Expenditiues 

     

and Other UseS 

  

29 S 1S -imu(1 5 S 1.423.34'8 

Fund Balances - Beginning of Yea' 

 

(0.:O7) 1(i.143 ( 276.951 ) (211.251) (894.724) 

Fund Balances - End of Year ti (4.897) S 10.1 72 S (89,351) S (213.251) S 518.614 

*Restated See Note 17. 

    

Continued ou next paw. 

See independent auditor!: report and related note disclosures. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisirum 

Nonmajoi Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. aml Changes 111 Fund Balance 

Year Ended May 31, 2023 

 

Debt Service Funds 

 

Total 

 

Sales 1,1\ 

(ieneral 

Obligation Sinking Fund 

Revenues 

Taxes 

Intergovernmental 

   

t 7 982,873 

2.740.401 

Charges fur Services 

   

2 906,282 

Fines & Forfeits 

   

40.642 

Miscellaneous 

   

949.488 

Total Revenues 

   

S 14 619,686 

Expenchtures 

    

Current-

     

General Governmeiit 1 

  

1 601,553 

Pubic Safety 

   

799,451 

Streets & Sanitation 

   

2.271.1132 

Water, Sewer & Utilities 

   

1,797,774 

Economic Develipment 

   

3.383,13g 

Recreatu & Culture 

   

378,882 

Health & Welfaie 

    

Debt Service 12,314.075 

  

12.9-12.358 

Total Expenditures $ 12,314.075 S S $ 24.174,189 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expeudinues S (12.314.075) s 

 

S (9.554.503) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

    

Insurance Proceeds $ $ S $ 

Debt Proceeds 11.130.000 

  

13.642.500 

Sale ot Assets 

   

42,788 

Transfer Ill 2.4n7.391 

  

5.93(1.9g3 

Transfei Out - 

  

(6 195,156) 

Total Other Financing S 13,537.391 S S $ 13,421,115 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 

    

Other SI iurces over Expenditures 

and Othei Uses S 1.223.3 1 t, 

  

S 3.86(+.612 

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year* (921.983) 1.26t. SY2 29- ,17(1 12 1 .2,275 

Fund Balance% - End tit Yea] 3u1.333 S 1.266,O2 S 297.1'70 $ 15.994,887 

'Restated See Note 17 

    

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures. 
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CitN of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended May 31. 2023 

Federal Grantor:Pass-Through GrantorProgram Title 

Federal 

CFDA 
Number 

Total Amount 
Awarded 

Total Current 

Year 
Expenditures 

Department of the Treasury-

 

Cornonavinis Relief Fund-

    

American Rescue Plan Act 21.0/7 S 3.238,70' ti 3.118,079 

Departrnent of Transportation-

 

Federal Aviation Administration 10(1 977,254 ti 977./54 

Office of Housing & Urban Development-

    

Conununity Development Block Grant-

    

2021 LCDBG HVAC Program 14 228 $ 263,090 $ 263,00 

2020 LCDBG Public Facilities Program 14 228 1,137.425 1,137.425 

Total 

 

$ 1400,515 S 1.400.515 

United States Department of Justice-

 

Edward Byrne Mernorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16 738 S 12,440 $ 12,490 

Total 

 

$ 5,62/3,961 S 5,508.338 

See independent auditors' report and related note disclosures 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

May 31, 2023 

Note 1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity 
of the City and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, Aldus of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Prqllt Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented 
in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the primary 
government tinancial statements. 

Basis of Accounting 

The City's Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accntal basis of 
accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the City's tinancial statements for the year ended 
May 31, 2023. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the 
Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are litnited to 
reimbursement. 

Indirect Cost Rate 

The City has not elected to use the 10 percent de minims indirect cost as allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 

Subrecipients 

There were no awards passed through to subrecipients. 



OTHER REPORTS!SCHEDULES 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Mayor and the City Council of 
Natchitoches, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, the 
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, the 
fiduciary fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as of and for the year ended May 31, 2023, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Natchitoches, 
Louisiana's (City) basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 27, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Members of AICPA Members of AICPA 
Govenuneutal Audit Quality City Members of Society of Louisiana CPA's 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Natchitoches' financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statement. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards (see Finding 2023-001). 

City of Natchitoches' Response to Findings 

The City of Natchitoches' response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City of Natchitoches' response was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion 
on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record 
and its distribution is not limited. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

-01-Its) 
 

tg-trottiti,4,-4.4) 

Thomas, Cunningham, Broadway & Todtenbier CPA's 
Natchitoches, Louisiana 

November 27, 2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Mayor and the City Council of 
Natchitoches, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Natchitoches' compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified 
as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the 
City's major federal program for the year ended May 31, 2023. The City's major federal program is 
identified in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the City has complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended 
May 31, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adrninistrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirernents for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards 
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of City's compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the City's 
federal programs. 

Members of AICPA Members of AICPA 
Governmental Audit Quality City Members of Society of Louisiana CPA's 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our okjectives are to ohtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred. whether due to fraud or error. and express an 
opinion on the City's comphance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance will ahvays detect material noncompliance when it exists The risk of not 
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, the override 
of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that. individually or in the aggregate, it would 
influence the judginent made by a reasonahle user of the report on compliance ahout the City's 
compliance with the requirements of each major federal prop-am as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Audiung Standards, and the Unitbrm Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judpnent and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of matenal noncompliance. whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedure, responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the City's compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the City's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and 
report on internal control o‘er compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly. no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and matenal 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on lnternal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control orer 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combmation of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented. or detected and corrected. on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deticiency. or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requiretnent of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control cher compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our 
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 

be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 - Orpite4,4,-.44) j-41, 

Thomas, Cunningham, Broadway, & Todtenbier 
Certified Public Accountants 
Natchitoches, Louisiana 

November 27, 2023 
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City of Natchitoches, Louisiana 
Schedule of Fmdings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended May 31, 2023 

I. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

The following  summarize the audit results in accordance with the Government Auditing 
Standards. 

1. An unmodified Opinion was issued on the prirnary government financial statements of the 
City of Natchitoches as of and for the year ended May 31, 2023: however, since the City 
did not present all of its component units, an adverse opinion was issued for the City of 
Natchitoches as a reporting entity. 

The audit disclosed no material weaknesses in internal control. 

The audit disclosed one instance of noncompliance required to bc reported under 
Government Auditing Standards 

4. The audit did not disclose anv instances of material weaknesses in internal control over 
major programs. 

5 An unmodified opinion was issued on compliance for major programs. 

6. The audit did not disclose any instances of noncompliance related to federal awards that 
are required to be reported under the Uniform Guidance. 

7. The following programs were major for the year ended May 31, 2023: 

o Coronavirus Relief Fund — CFDA4 21.027 
CDBG-Entitlement Grant — CFDA # 14.228 

8. $750.000 was the threshold used to distinguish Type A from Type B programs. 

9. The Citv of Natchitoches does not qualify as a low-risk auditee. 
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City of Natchitoches. Louisiana 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued) 

Year Ended May 31. 2023 

II. FINDINCiS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

70'3-001 Cash Balance Unsecured 

Criteria - Louisiana state law requires that all funds held by financial institutions for an entity must he 
secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the financial institutions. 
The market yahie of the pledged securities plus the FDIC insurance must at all times equal or exceed 
the amount on deposit with the financial institutions. 

Condition - The cash halance in the financial institutions was not fully secured by FDIC or pledged 
securities. 

Elko - If the financial institution were to fail. the City's funds in excess of FDIC insurance and 
pledged securities could he lost. 

cause - The City and the financial institution did not monitor the financial institutions 
balances to ensure the balances were not in excess of FDIC Insurance and pledged 
securities. 

Recommendation - The City should ensure at all times that their financial institution has its funds 
fully secured by FDIC insurance and pledged securities 

Management's Response - The City will ensure at all times that our financial institution has fully 
secured the City's funds by FDIC insurance and pledged securities 

III. PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

None. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON APPLYING 
STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the City of Natchitoches 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the fiscal period June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2023. The City of Natchitoches (City) 
management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The City has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas 
identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2023. Additionally, 
LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. 
This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed many not address 
all the items of interest to a user for this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report 
and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate 
for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. We obtained and inspected the entity's written policies and procedures and observed that they 
address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the 
operations: 

• Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

• Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

• Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Members of AICPA Members of AICPA 
Governmental Audit Quality Center Members of Society of Louisiana CPA's 
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• Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for 
each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation.) 

• Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee(s) 
rate of pay or approl, al and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

• Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions. (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

• Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, i f applicable). including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required 
approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel 
card purchases). 

• Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense. (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers 

• Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:111 1-1121, (2) 
actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, 
and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees and 
officials were notitied of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

• Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure:EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements. and (4) debt service requirements. 

• Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from thr network, 0) periodic testing verification that hackups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches:updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes. and tools needed to recover operations 
after a critical event 

• Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42.342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and 
prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Procedure Results: No exceptions ;Pere noted as a result of these procedures. 

Board or Finance Committee 

2. We obtained and inspected the boardfinance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent documents in effect during the tiscal period, 
and: 

• Observed that the board. tinance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency in 
accordance with the board's enabling legislation. charter. bvlaws, or other equivalent document. 



Page 11() 

• Observed that the minutes referenced or included quarterly hudget-to-actual comparisons on the 
proprietary fund. 

• Obtained the prior year audit report and observed the unrestricted net position in the General Fund. 
If the General Fund had a negative ending unrestricted net position in the prior year audit report. 
observed that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a 
formal plan to eliminate the negative unrestricted net position in the General Fund. 

• Observed whether the board finance committee received written updates of the progress of resolving 
audit finding s), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until the findings 
are considered fully resolved. 

Procedure Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of these procedures. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. We obtained a listing of entity hank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Management identified the entity's main operating account. 
We selected the entity's main operating account and randomly selected 4 additional accounts (or all if 
less than 5). We randomly selected one month from the fiscal period, obtained and inspected the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for the selected accounts, and observed that. 

• Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within two months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g. initialed and dated, electronically logged), 

• Bank reconciliations included written evidence that a member of management or a board member 
who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each hank reconciliation (e.g. 
initialed and dated, electronialy logged); and 

• Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding tbr more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

Procedure Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of these procedures. 

Collections (excluding electronk funds transfers) 

4 We ohtained a listing of deposit sites tor the fiscal period where deposits for cash check-inoney orders 
(cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. We randomly selected 
5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

5. We obtained a listing of collection locations and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
We randoinly selected one collection location for each deposit site selected. We obtained and inspected 
written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, then 
inquired of employees about their job duties) at each collection location. and observed that job duties 
were properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

• Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers registers 

• Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparing making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible tbr reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 
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• Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employeeofficial is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

• The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and'or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source andior agency fund additions, are not responsible for collecting cash. 
unless another employee:official verities the reconciliation. 

6. We obtained from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees 
who have access to cash. We observed that the hond or insurance policy for theft was in force durina the 
fiscal period. 

7. We randomly selected two deposit dates for each of the bank accounts selected for procedure "--`3 under 
"Bank Reconciliations-  ahme (selected the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made 
on the dates randomly selected and randonily selected a deposit if multiple deposits were made on the 
same day). We ohtained supporting documentation for each of the deposits selected and. 

• We observed that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

• We traced sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

• We traced the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

• We ohserved that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit 
is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked sate or drawer). 

• We traced the actual deposit per the hank statement to the general ledger. 

Procedure Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of these procedures. 

Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash purchases)  

8 We obtained a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is cornplete. We randomly selected the required amount of dishursement 
locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

9. For each location selected under 48 above. obtained a listing of those employees imolved with non-
pa),:roll purchasing and payment functions. We obtained written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, then inquired of employees 
about their job duties), and we observed that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

• At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request. approving a purchase, and 
placing an order or making the purchase. 

• At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

• The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding.modifpng vendor files. 
unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 
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• Either the employee. official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 

checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

• Only employees. oftkials authorized to sign checks approved the electronic disbursement (release) of 
funds, whether through autoinated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds transfer (EFT), wire 
transfer. or some electronic means. 

10. For each location selected under 48 above, we ohtained the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtained management's representation that 
the population is complete. We randomly selected 5 disbursements for each location, and obtained 
supporting documentation tbr each transaction and: 

• We observed that the disbursement, whether paper or electronic means, matched the related original 
itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the invoice 
were received hy the entity. 

• We observed whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g.. initial:date. electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under 49, as applicable. 

11. Usmg the entity's main operating account and the month selected in procedure #3 under Bank 
Reconciliations. we randomly selected 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic 
disbursements if less than 5) and observed that each electronic disbursement was (a) approl, ed hy only 
those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) approved hy 
the required number of authorized signers per thr entity's policy. If no electronic payrnents were made 
from the main operating account during the month selected, we selected an alternative month andlor 
account for testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

Procedure Resuhs: No exceptions were noted as a result of these procedure.s. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purc hase Cards (Cards) 

12. We obtained from management a listing of all active credit cards. bank debit cards. fuel cards, and 
purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period. including the card numbers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. We obtained management's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

13. Using the listing prepared by management, we randomly selected the required amount of cards (up to 
five) that were used during the fiscal period. We randomly selected one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card { for a debit card, randomly selected one monthly bank statement). and obtained 
supporting documentation, and: 

• We observed that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit:debit card purchases, exception reports for excessive 
fud card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved), by someone 
other than the authorized card holder. 

• We observed that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 
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14. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, 
we randomly selected the required amount transactions (up to ten) from each statement, and obtained 
supporting documentation for the transactions. For each transaction, we observed that it is supported by 
(a) an original itemized receipt that identified precisely what was purchased, (b) written documentation 
of the business/public purpose, and (c) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal 
charges only). For missing receipts, we described the nature of the transaction and noted whether 
management had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt 
statement" that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

Procedure Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of these procedures. 

Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

15. We obtained from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during 
the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. We 
randomly selected 5 reimbursements, and obtained the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid 
expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For 
each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

• If reimbursed using a per diem, we observed that the approved reimbursement rate is no more than 
those rates established by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov). 

• If reimbursed using actual costs, we observed that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

• We observed that each reimbursement was supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, we observed that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure #1, 8th 
bullet). 

• We observed that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than 
the person receiving reimbursement. 

Procedure Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of these procedures. 

Contracts 

16. We obtained from management a listing of all agreements/contracts (or active vendor list) for professional 
services, materials, and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during 
the fiscal period. We obtained management's representation that the listing is complete. We randomly 
selected the required amount of contracts (up to 5) from the listing, excluding our contract, and: 

• We observed that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

• We observed whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy 
or law (e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

• If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), we observed that the original contract terms provided 
for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms (e.g. 
if approval is required for any amendment, the document approval). 
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• We randomly selected one payment from the fiscal period for each of the selected contracts, obtained 
the supporting iiwoice, agreed the invoice to the contract terms, and observed that the invoice and 
related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Procedure Results: No exceptiorm were noted us a result qf these procedures. 

Payroll and Personnel 

17. We obtained a listing of employees. elected officials employed during the fiscal period and manageinent's 
representation that the hsting is complete. We randomly selected 5 employees or officials, obtained 
related paid salaries and personnel tiles, and agreed paid salaries to authorized salaries:pay rates in the 
personnel files. 

18. We randomly selected one pay period during the fiscal period For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under 417 above, we ohtained attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

• We observed that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation. sick, compensatory). 

• We observed that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials. 

• We observed that any leave accrued or taken during the pav period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records 

• We observed that the rate paid to the employees or officials ap-ee to the authorized salaryipay rate 
found with the personnel file. 

19. We obtained a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during tlie fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. If applicable. we selected two 
employees or officials, and obtained related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in 
management's termination payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments If 
applicable, we agreed the hours to the employee's or official's cumulative leave records, and the pay rates 
to the employee's or official's authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and the 
termination payment to entity policy. 

10. We obtained management's representation that eniployer and employee portions of third-party payroll 
related amounts (e.g. payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums. garnishments, 
workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have heen tiled, by 
required deadlines. 

Procedure Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of these procedures. 

21. Using the 5 randomly selected employees. officials frorn procedure 17 undcr "Payroll and Personnel-
above, we ohtained ethics documentation trom management, and: 

• We observed whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee/official completed one 
hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170. 

• We observed that the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and official 
were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy (luring the fiscal period, as applicable. 
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22. We inquired and. or ohserved whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 
42:1170. 

Procedure Results: No exceptions )rere noted as a result of these procedures. 

Debt Service 

13. We ohtained a listing of bonds.notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the hsting is complete. We selected all debt instruments on the hsting, 
obtained supporting documentation, and observed that State Bond Commission approval was obtained 
for each debt instniment issued as requu-ed by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

14. We obtained a listing of bonds notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. We randomly selected one bond:note, inspected debt 
covenants, obtained supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agreed actual 
reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants t including contingency hinds, short-
lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Procedure Resuhs: No exceptions were noted as a result of these procedures. 

fraud .NOficv 

25. We obtained a listing of misappropnations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
inanagement's representation that the listing is complete We selected all misappropriations on the listine, 
obtained supporting documentation, and obsened that the entity reported the misappropnation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entitv is domiciled as required by 
R.S. 24.523. 

26. We observed whether the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 
24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fiaud, waste, or abuse of public hinds. 

Procedure Resuhs: No exceptions were noted as a result of these procedures. 

Injarmation Technology Disaster RecovegiBusiness Continuity 

1 7. We performed the following procedures: 

• We obtained and inspected the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical 
data (if no written documentation, inquired of persoimel responsible for backing up critical data) and 
observed that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, (b) was not stored on the government's 
local server or network, and (c) was encrypted. 

• We obtained and inspected the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested:verified that its 
backups can he restored ( if there is no written documentation, then inquired of personnel responsible 
for testing verifying backup restoration) and observed evidence that the test:verification was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

• We obtained a listing of the entity's computers currently in use, and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete We randomly selected the required number 
of computers (at least 5) and ohserved while management demonstrates that the selected computers 
have current and active antivinis software and that the operating system and accounting system 
software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 



Page 116 

28. We randomly selected 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list 
of terminated employees obtained in procedure #19, and observed evidence that the selected terminated 
employees have been removed or disabled from the network. 

Procedure Results: We performed the procedures and discussed the results with management. 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

29. We randomly selected the employees/officials from procedure #17 under "Payroll and Personnel" above, 
obtained sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observed that the 
documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment 
training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

30. We observed that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedures on its 
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

31. We obtained the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observed that the 
report was dated on or before February 1, and observed that it includes the applicable requirements of 
R.S. 42:344: 

• Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

• Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

• Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

• Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or corrective 
action; and 

• Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Procedure Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of these procedures. 

We were engaged by the Commission to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to 
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Commission and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 
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Thomas, Cunningham, Broadway & Todtenbier, CPA's 
Natchitoches, Louisiana 
November 27, 2023 
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